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Annual Report of the Members of the Corporation

The Board of Directors take pleasure in presenting their Annual Report including the Financial Statements of the
Corporation for the year ended 30 June 2020

Activities

During the year the Group continued to provide services to the Cook Islands community on behalf of the
Government, including the operations of the ports and airports on the islands of Aitutaki and Rarotonga, the
electricity supply to Aitutaki and Rarotonga, and the operations of the Bank of Cook Islands.

The Corporation managed all Government land and buildings throughout the Cook Islands including commercial
properties, residential properties, Government Ministries, Government Funded Agencies, public schools and
public hospitals.

Objectives

The Corporation was established by an Act of Patliament, the Cook Islands Investment Corporation Act (1998).
The Act provides for the control and management of Government Assets and undertakings. Specific objectives
of the Corporation are outlined in the Act, and include:

Efficient Management of Assels
This involves the management of Government lands and buildings, and the statutory management of subsidiaries
and state owned enterprises.

Privafisation

The Act ensures that the Corporation does not compete in trading activities where the private sector is willing and
able to carry out those activities, unless in the opinion of the Board it is in the public interest that the Corporation
becomes involved to ensure that a particular trading activity is provided on a reliable, sustainable and equitable
basis.

To be socially Responsible
This objective of the Corporation provides a balance between the maximisafion of profits, and the recognition of
the Gavernment’s social responsibility in the performance of the Corporation’s functions.

Results
Parent
30 June 30 June
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2019 2018
Restated
Surplus/(Deficit} after tax 11,341 851
Total assets 370,401 4,801
Owners' equity 250,031 1,286
STATUTORY CORPORATIONS
Airport Authority

The Airport Autherity is governed under the Airports and Airport Authorities Act (1968-1962). The Authority is
responsible for the management of the international airport on Rarctonga and the domestic airport on Aitutaki.

The Authority has total assets of $§72,452,000 and equity of $71,724,000 at 30 June 2020. It made a tax paid loss
of $442,000 this year.
6
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Bank of the Cook Islands Holdings Corporation

The Bank of the Cook Islands Holdings Corporation was established in November 2003, under the Bank of the
Cook islands Act 2003, following the committee review under the Minister of Bank of the Cook Islands to ensure
the agencies charter remained in line with the Governmeni's commitment to financial reform.

The Bank of the Cook Islands Holdings Corporation has total assets of $131,725,000 and equity of $19,082,000
at 30 June 2020. K made a loss after tax of $821,000 this year.

Cook Islands Government Property Corporafion

The Corporation was established by the Cook Islands Government Property Corperation Act (1969) to manage
Government assets with its governing body being the Ministers of the Government. The major assets owned by
Cook islands Government Property Corporation are Government land and buildings, and equity investments.

The Corporation generated rental revenues on its buildings portfalio. These revenues are fransfetred to Cook
islands Investment Corporation in accordance with Section 31 (2) of the Cook Islands Investment Corporation Act
(1998}. All administration and management expenses relating to assets owned by the Corporation are incurred by
Cook islands Investment Corporation.

The Corporation’s other major ravanue items are the 2020 dividend from Cook Islands Telecommunication
Holdings Limited of $1,760,000 and funding revenue recognised of $463,000 related to land lease payments
made by Crown on the Corporations behaif.

The Corporation has total assets of $69,344,000 and equity of $68,784,000 at 30 June 2020. it made a profit of
$46,000 this year. The Corporation is tax exempt.

Ports Authority

The management of the commercial ports at Avatiu, Rarotonga and Arutanga, Aitutaki rests with the Poris
Authority, under the Ports Authority Act {1994-1895).

The Autherity has total assets of $35,296,000 and equity of $15,757,000 at 30 June 2020, It made a profit of
$665,000 for this year.

Cook Islands Broadcasting Corporation

The Cook Islands Broadcasting Corporation is governed by the Broadcasting Corporation Act (1989). With the
functions of providing radio and television service privatised, Cook Islands Broadcasting Corporation is currently
dormant.

Cook Islands Broadcasting Corporation has nil total assets and nil equity at 30 June 2020. it did not trade during
the year.

Te Aponga Uira O Tumu-te-Varovaro
Te Aponga Uira generates and distributes electricity to Rarotonga in accordance with its mandate under the Te
Aponga Uira O tumu-te-Varovaro Act (1991).

Te Aponga has total assets of $62,994,000 and equity of $59,881,000 at 30 June 2020. It made an after tax loss
of $767,000 this year.

COMPANIES

Cook Islands Property Corporation (NZ) Limited

Cook Islands Property Corporation (NZ) Limited is incorporated under the New Zealand Companies Act {1993).
The Company owns the Consulate premises in Wellington. )

Cook Islands Property Corporation (NZ} Limited has total assets of $876,000 and eqmty of ($50,000) at 30 June
2020. It made a loss after tax of $92,000 this year.

Suwarrow Development Corporation Limited
Suwarrow Development Corporation Limited was set up to act as a manager / licensor for industry in Suwarrow.
The Company is dormant.
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Cook Islands Telecommunication Holdings Limited

Cook Islands Government Property Corporation is the owner of all shares in Cook Islands Telecommunication
Holdings Limited. That entity is a holding company for Government's 40% interest in Telecom Cook Islands
Limited. Control of Cook Islands Telecommunication Holdings Limited rests with the governing body of Cook
Islands Government Property Corporation.

Cook Islands Telecommunication Holdings Limited has total assets of $12,355,000 and equity of $12,337,000 at
30 June 2020. It made a tax paid surplus before dividends payable of $2,509,000 this year.

Banana Court Company Limited
The Company manages the Banana Court commercial retail complex in Avarua.

The Banana Court Company Limited has total assets of $258,000 and equity of $231,000 at 30 June 2020. It
made a tax paid surplus $6,000 for this year.

To Tatou Vai Limited
The principal activity of To Tatou Vai Limited is to ensure the availability of an adequate supply of drinkable water
and to establish and manage the treatment, collection and disposal of sewage on the Island of Rarotonga

To Tatou Vai Limited has total assets of $1,316,000 and equity of $607,000 at 30 June 2020. It made a tax paid
surplus of $492,000 for this year.

Te Mana Uira o Araura Limited
The Company generates and distributes electricity on the outer island of Aitutaki.

Te Mana Uira o Araura Limited has total assets of $7,599,000 and equity of $7,151,000 at 30 June 2020. It made
a tax paid loss of $1,019,000 for this year.

Avaroa Cables Limited
The principal activity of Avaroa Cables Limited is management of telecommunication networks and services.

Avaroa Cables Limited has total assets of $22,972,000 and equity of $108,000 at 30 June 2020. It made a tax
paid surplus of $77,000 for this year.

Accounting Policies

Accounting policies are applied according to generally accepted accounting practice as applied in International
Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS).

Remuneration of CIIC Directors

Mr Michael Henry received fees of $29,000 as Chairman of the Board and $25,000 as a member of the
Infrastructure Committee during the year. Mr Malcolm Sword received $19,000 as a Director and $15,000 as a
member of the Infrastructure Committee. Ms Caren Rangi received $39,000 for her role as a Director of the Cook
Islands Investment Corporation.

Appointment of Auditors
In compliance with Section 17 of the Cook |
auditor for the 2020 financial year.

“ Director V \M Director
25 June 2o2 25 Tone 202)
Date Date
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To the shareholders of Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Report on the Corporation and Group financial statements

Qualified opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying Corporation and Group We have audited the accompanying Corporation and
financial statements of Cook Islands Investment Group financial statements which comprise:
Corporation (the Corporation) and its subsidiaries (the
Group), on pages 12 to 73, except for the possible effects
of the matter described in the basis for qualified opinion
present fairly, in all material respects, the Corporations the Corporation and Group statements of

and Group's financial position as at 30 June 2020 and its comprehensive revenue and expenses, changes in
financial performance and cash flows for the year ended equity and cash flows for the year then ended; and
on that date in accordance with International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS).

— the Corporation and Group statements of financial
position as at 30 June 2020;

— notes, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information

g Basis for qualified opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) {'ISAs (NZ)'). We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Ownership, completeness and valuation of property, plant and equipment

The Corporation and Group's property, plant and equipment, is carried at $1356m and $207m respectively on the Corporation
and Group statements of financial position as at 30 June 2020. We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence about the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2019 due to a loss of historical
accounting records. Our audit opinion on the Corporation and Group financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019
was modified in respect of this matter. Refer to note 14 for further details. Consequently, we were unable to determine
whether any adjustments to the amounts shown for property, plant and equipment in the Corporation and Group statements
of financial position as at 30 June 2020, or related amounts included in the Corporation and Group statements of
comprehensive revenue and expenses for the year then ended, were necessary.

We are independent of the Corporation and Group in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 International Code
of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners (Including International Independence Standards) (New Zealand) issued by the New
Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) ('I[ESBA Code’), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code.

Our responsibilities under ISAs (NZ) are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Corporation and
Group financial statements section of our report.

Our firm has also provided other services to the Corporation and Group in relation to taxation. Subject to certain restrictions,
partners and employees of our firm may also deal with the Corporation and Group on normal terms within the ordinary course
of trading activities of the business of the Corporation. These matters have not impaired our independence as auditor of the
Corporation and Group. The firm has no other relationship with, or interest in, the Corporation and Group.

o ] Emphasis of matter - Estimation Uncertainty in the preparation of the financial
statements

We draw attention to note 3 Critical estimates and judgements used in applying accounting policies, Credit provisioning, in
the financial statements, which describes increased estimation uncertainty in the preparation of the Group financial
statements, specifically as it relates to:

— the extent and duration of the disruption to businesses arising from the actions by governments, businesses and
consumers to prevent and contain the spread of the Covid-19 virus;

© 2021 KPMG, a New Zealand partnership and a member firm of the KPMG netw
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative {"KPMG International”), a
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— the extent and duration of the expected economic downturn (and forecasts for key economic factors including GDP and
CPI); and

— the effectiveness of government measures that have been and will be put in place to support businesses and consumers
through this disruption and economic downturn.

The Covid-19 impacts and data input adjustments has resulted in a 55% increase in the ECL reported in the financial

statements compared with pre-Covid times.

In our view, this matter is fundamental to the users’ understanding of the financial statements and the financial position and
performance of the Group. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

~BEl- Emphas :
Emphasis of matter - Loan covenant breaches

We draw attention to note 22 of the financial statements which describes the covenant breaches under the Cook Islands
Government's lending arrangements with the Asian Development Bank, which have consequential impacts to the subsidiary
loan agreement with the Group. The Group has recognised the loan balance as a current liability in accordance with IPSAS 1 as
there was no waiver of the covenant breach received before balance date.

The Group and its directors consider the preparation of the financial statements on a going concern basis appropriate
considering the post balance date confirmation received from the Cook Islands Government. This confirmation confirms that
the lending provided to the Group under the subsidiary loan agreement will not be called up as a result of these covenant
breaches, or in the event the Asian Development Bank decides to call up lending made under the Cook Islands Government's
lending arrangements as a result of these covenant breaches. Qur opinion is not modified in respect to this matter.

1 — Other information

The Members, on behalf of the Corporation and Group, are responsible for the other information included in the financial
statements. Other information includes the Annual Report of the Members of the Corporation. Our opinion on the Corporation
and Group financial statements does not cover any other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Corporation and Group financial statements our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Corporation and Group
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

ﬁ—l Use of this independent auditor’s report

This independent auditor's report is made solely to the shareholders as a body. Our audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state to the shareholders those matters we are required to state to them in the independent auditor's report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
shareholders as a body for our audit work, this independent auditor’s report, or any of the opinions we have formed.

n Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation and Group for the Corporation and
Group financial statements

The Members of the Corporation, on behalf of the Corporation and Group, are responsible for:
— the preparation and fair presentation of the Corporation and Group financial statements in accordance with IPSAS;

— implementing necessary internal control to enable the preparation of a set of Corporation and Group financial statements
that is fairly presented and free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error: and
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— assessing the ability to continue as a going concern. This includes disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

x L Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Corporation and Group financial
statements
Our objective is:

- 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Corporation and Group financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

- toissue an independent auditor's report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs NZ
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. They are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Corporation and Group
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (NZ), the auditor exercises professicnal judgement and maintains professional
scepticism throughout the audit. The auditor also:

Identifies and assesses the risks of material misstatement of the Corporation and Group financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, designs and performs audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtains audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for the auditor’s opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtains an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation and Group's
internal control.

Evaluates the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Concludes on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by those charged with governance
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Corporation’s and Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If the auditor concludes that a
material uncertainty exists, the auditor is required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
Corporation’s and Group's financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the auditor's opinion. The
auditor's conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Corporation and/or the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluates the overall presentation, structure and content of the Corporation and Group financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Corporation and Group financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtains sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. The auditor is responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. The auditor remains solely responsible for the audit opinion.

The auditor communicates with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that the auditor
identifies during the audit.

kKem@
KPMG

Rarotonga
25 June 2021
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Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Parent A
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars Note . 2019
Revenue from exchange transactions
Airport landing fees -
Electricity services -
Fees on banking portfolio assets 3{c) -
Interest on banking portfolio assets 3(c) "
Port services -
Rental income 3{c) 748
Interest income 3(c) 33
Total revenue from exchange transactions 781
Other revenue
Aid funding 3(c) -
Crown appropriation 3(c) 5,288
Dividends received 3(t) 1,396
POBOC revenue 57
Sundry income 5 361
Total other revenue 7,102
Total Revenue 7,883
The nofes on pages 20 fo 73 are an infegral part of these financial statements
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Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses

For the year ended 30 June 2020

in thousands of New Zealand Dollars Note 2019
Expenditure
Personnel costs 1,441
Depreciation and amortisation 14,15,16 ; 46
Directors fees and expenses 172
Increase / (decrease) in provision for doubtful 14
Finance costs -
Legal and professional fees 169
Rental and operating lease costs 576
Office communication 41
Repairs and maintenance 2,719
Insurance 251
Fuel -
Covid-12 discounts -
Other expenses 3] 1,380
Total expenditure 6,819
Other gains/(losses)
Gain / (loss) on disposal of assels -
Unrealised foreign exchange {loss) / gain -
Realised foreign exchange gain / (loss) -
Share of profit of equity accounted investees 20(a) -
Impairment kss -
Total other gainsi{losses) -
Surplus / {deficit) before income tax 1,064
Income tax expense 18 (213)
Surplus / {deficit) for the year 851
Other comprehensive revenue and expenses -
851

Total comprehensive revenue and expenses for the

The notes on pages 20 fo 73 are an infegral part of these financial statements

13
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2020

Group Parent
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars Note 2 2019 20 2019
Restated
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8 1,432
Term deposits 9 713
Trade receivabies 10 85
Dividends receivable 11 -
Inventories 13 ¢ 1
Work in progress receivable 11(g) 826
Prepayments : 33
Sundry and other receivables 538
Related party receivables 11 165
Banking portfolio investments 12 -
Taxation receivable 18 770
Total current assets 4,574
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 120
Investment properties 16 -
Banking portfolic investments 12 -
Deferred tax assets 18 5
Intangible assets 15 -
Investment in associate 20(a -
Investment in subsidiaries 20(b 102
Investment in shares 19 -
Term deposits 9 -
Total non-current assets 227
Total assets 3. 370,401 4,801
The notes on pages 20 to 73 are an infegral part of these financial statements
14
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2020
Note : 2019 2019
In thousands of New Zealand Doflars Restated
Equity
Capital contribution and retained earning,
250,031 1,286
Total Equity 250,031 1,288}
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 5,887 589
Banking customer deposits 21 86,934 -
Cusfomer bonds 1,008 42
Borrowings 22 809 -
Deferred revenue liability 469 469
Employee entitlements 7 892 70
Incame in advance 441 -
Related party payables 11 758 1,538
Capital project liability 807 807
Dividends payable - -
Income tax payvable 86 -
Total current liabilities 97,072 3,515
Non current liabilities
Banking customer deposits 21 4,049 -
Deferred taxation liability 18 5556 -
Deferred revenue liability - -
Employee entitlements 7 - -
Borrowings 22 18,694 -
Total nonh current liabilities 23,298 -
Total liabilities 120,370 3,515
Total equity and liabilities 370,401 4,801
The notes on pages 20 to 73 are an integral part of these financial stefements
15
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Group
Capital Total equity
contributions &
retained earnings
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars
Balance at 1 July 2018 230,902 230,902
Changes in net assets/equity for 2019
Tax benefit on dividends paid 268 268
Surplus/(Deficit} for the year 11,341 11,341
Change in accounting policy 912 912
Correction of error (261) (281)
Total restated recognised revenue and expenses for the
year 12,260 12,260
Transactions with owners of the Parent;
Equity injection by owners 11 i) 11,815 11,816
Dividends (4,946) {4,946)
Total contributions by and distribufions to owners of the
Parent 6,869 6,869
Restated Balance at 30 June 2019 250,031 250,031

The notes on pages 20 to 73 are an integral part of these financial staterments
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Parent
Capital Total equity
contributions &
retained earnings
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Balance at 1 July 2018 1,503 1,503

Changes in net assets/equity for 2019

Surplus/{Deficit) for the year 851 861
Total recognised revenue and expenses for the year 851 851

Transactions with owners of the Parent;

Equity injection by owners - -

Dividends {1,068) (1,068)
Total contributions by and distributions to owners of the

Parent (1,068} {1,068)
Balance at 30 June 2019 1,286 1,286

The notas on pages 20 to 73 are an integral part of these financial statements

for
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Statement of Cashflows
For the year ended 30 June 2020

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars Group

Note | 2019
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers 1,080
Crown appropriation 5,979
POBOC 123
Dividends received 1,396
Interest received 33
Aid funding -
Net increase/{decrease) in client deposits -
Net investment in banking portiolic -
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (6,848}
Interest paid -
Income tax paid (268)
Net cash from operating activities 1,495
Cash flows from investing activifies
Net acquisition/disposal of property, plant and equipment (59)
Net acquisition/sale of intangibles -
Proceeds from / {(acquistion of} teem deposits (27)
Proceeds from Investees -
Leans to related partiss 887
Net cash from investing activities 901
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings -
Proceeds from related parties (340)
Equity Infroduced -
Dividends paid 1,068
Net cash from financing activities (1,408)
Net (decreasellincrease in cash and cash equivalents 088
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 444
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,432
Made up of:
Bank balances and on-call deposits 8 1,432
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,432

The notes on pages 20 to 73 are an irtegral part of these financial stafements
18
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Statement of Cashflows

For the year ended 30 June 2020

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Parent

2019
Surplus for the year after tax 851
Depreciation & amoriisation 46
Doubtful debts -
(Gains)losses on asset disposal -
Foreign exchange losses/(gains) -
Plant and Equipment acquired in non-exchange -
impairment on plant property and equipment 2
Share of profit from equity accounted investment
Tax Impact of NZ IPSAS 41 Opening Adjustment
Working capital adjustments
{Increase) / decrease in receivables & prepayments (324)
Increase / {decrease) in payables & other accruals 218
{Increase) / decrease in work in progress 567
{Increase) / decrease in bank loan portfolios -
{Increase) / decrease in inventories -
Increase / (decrease) in project liabilities 212)
Increase / (decrease) in deferred income liability 402
Increase / (decrease) in income in advance -
Increase / (decrease) in net tax payable 52)
(Increase) / decrease in deferred tax asset -
increase / (decrease) in deferred tax liability @
Increase / (decrease) in customer deposits -
Net cash flows from operating activities 1,495
The notes on pages 20 fo 73 are an integral part of these financial statements
19
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Reporting entity
2 Basis of preparation
3 Significant accounting policies

New standards and
4 interpretations not yet adopted
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6 Other expenses

7 Employee entitlements
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10 Receivables from exchange
transactions
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements

Note

Note

'The key |mpacts of COVID 19 on these entitles is descnbed belo

Bank of the COok Islands Limited: : : : s
“The: Group has considered the ongomg |mpacts of COVID 19 on: Eank of the Cook lslands L|m|led's forecast for

1 Reporting entity
Cook Islands Investment Corporation is domiciled in the Coolk islands and ingorporated under the Cook Islands
Investment Act 1998. lts financial statements comply with the Act.

Financial statements for Cook Islands Investment Corporation (the "Corporation”} and consolidated financial
statements are presented. The consclidated financial statements comprise the Corporation and its subsidiaries
{the "Group") and the Group's interests in associates. The Corporation is an in-substance subsidiary of the Cook
Islands Government.

The Corporation's principal activities are property investment and management. The Group also owns entities
that operate in the banking, communication, power supply, airport, and port sectors. The Corporation's registered
office is located in Rarotonga, Cook Islands.

Throughout these financial statements, unless stated otherwise, references to the '‘Gorporation’ or 'Parent' refer fo
Cook Islands Investment Corporation.

2  Basis of preparation

a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with and comply with
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). Some entities within the group apply IFRS, NZIFRS
and PBE standards in their individual financia! statements. The policies adopted by these entities are in line with
IPSAS or where IPSAS does not have a relevant standard, other authoritative support has been used such as
IFRS. The policies adopted by the Group are inline with IPSAS,

The accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

b) Basis of measurement

The financial siaterments have been prepared on the historica! cost basis modified for the revaluation of certain
assets.

The staternent of cash flows is prepared using the direct method.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis.

COViD-19 Pandemic

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared a global pandemic as a result of the spread of Covid-
19. Faollowing this, the Cook Islands Government imposed significant restrictions on travel fo the Cook Islands
which resulted in a complete cessation of international arrivals into the Cook Islands, and in particular, tourists.
Covid-19 has had a significant impact on the economy of the Cook Islands and in turn, the results of the Group
through reduced revenues.

.Gmng concern without material uncertamtues

The COVID-19 pandemlc has developed rapidly i an 2020, Wlthln the group, the results of Bank of. the Ceok lsla t 5}
Limited, Airport; Authonty, Te Aponga U;ra, Te Mana Urra ] Araura, and PortsiAuthonty have expenenced the
most |mpact

the year ended June 2021.
The unaudlted results of the bank s1nce year end are

- §635K.

: .= The total brovr510n for doubtful loans- has decreased frern $6 5m at year. end to $6 1rn at 31 March 2021

A total of $4.08m has been regeived frarn the Government Interest Rehef Program forthe three quarters up
to Match 2021.

B ¥ lncrease in cash inflows from loan repayments from $1 5m per month pre-COVID to an average of $1 62m

to March 2021,
BLEN forecasted NPAT position for 30 June 2021 of $376 803

: 21.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note

2 Basis of preparation (continued)

b) Basis of measurement (continued)
Going concern without material uncertainties (continued)
Bank of the Cook Islands Limited (continued):
In response to these matters, the bank has taken the following actions from 1 July 2020:
® Reduction in term deposit rates offered to government;
Reduction in interest paid on client call accounts;
Introduced the 'Steady State Package' consisting of various options for repayment holidays from 1 July — 31
December 2020.
Loan interest rate reduction on 87% of the June 2020 loan portfolio based on a predetermined interest rate
floor.
Additional support was also offered through Government's Economic Response Plan (ERP).
Phase Il of the ERP directly benefits the banks operational and cash flow position including:
A grant to customers equating to 70% of interest on qualifying loans for the 12 months 1 July 2020 — 30
June 2021, paid to the Group on a quarterly basis; and

Interest revenue eamed on loans issued as part of the Business Continuity Credit Facility solely executed by
the Group in conjunction with Government.

Airport Authority

Due to COVID-19, Airport Authority revenues by year end had dropped by 20% from pre-covid times due to the
travel restrictions and resulting reduction in international flights. To year end and throughout most of the 2020/21
financial year, travel restrictions remained until 17 May 2021 when the 2-way travel bubble with New Zealand
commenced.

To mitigate the impact of COVID-9, the Authority focused on tightening cost controls and enhancing operational
efficiency. Staff have been redeployed to other Government ministries and agencies in the short term with no
terminations as a result of the pandemic.

As at June 2021, the Authority has not required Government or other external assisstance to support operating
costs. Current flights are at least 5 per week and are expected to increase going forward, albeit with caution and
subject to COVID-19 containment.

Te Aponga Uira

In response to the COVID-19 impact on the local economy Te Aponga Uira provided community relief in the form
of temporary discounts on monthly invoices to all customers from 19th March for an inital period of 3 months.
Domestic customers received 100% discounts in this period and Commercial and Demand customers received
60% discount. From June 2020, the Authority committed to continue customer discounts with modified
application: Domestic customers received a credit of up to $100 per month, and Commercial and Demand
customers continued to receive 60% on the condition that they qualified as recipients of the Government's wage
subsidy or business grants. If a Commerical or Demand customer did not qualify, they were not provided a
discount. All Government entities (including state-owned enterprises) were not eligible to receive the second
round of discounts.

As a result of the discounts provided, the Authority's net electricty sales by year end reduced by 21% from pre-
covid times.

The details of recent discounts offered are included in Note 27 Subsequent events.

As at June 2021, the Authority has not required Government or other external assisstance to support operating
costs.

The discounts offered to customers will come to an end by 30 June 2021.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note

Note

customers who receive Covid-18 govemment support continued. to receive g 100% dlsoount and att other :

'from the Govemment
The disoounts offered to customers W|tl come to an end by 3 June 202

"Ports Authorlty :
-The closure of the Cook Islands borders from March- 2020 resulted ind decling.in revente of epproxrmateiy 6.5% -;

_concessions and waiver of portfess..

"Although itis not oertaln that these efforts will be successful the Group 'S forecast shows that the actrons that c
.has taken are sufficient to mitigate the uncertainty presented by COVID 19 therefore ‘these fi nancral statements
are prepared oh a going concern basis. A - L B

-Cenirai to this assessment is the continued government support the Group recewes wrth the combmed nature of E
_the operatmns hemg essentlal ser\uces and essenfial asset menagement & ownlng entmes B NPT :

2  Basis of preparation {continued)

b) Basis of measurement {continued)

'Going ooncem wlthout material uncertalnttes (contlnued)
TeManalUirao Araura Limited

In responge to the COVID-19.impagt on the Artutakl economy, the Cornpany pro\nded communlty retlef in the form )

«of.a 100% discount to all customer types for the April to June 2020 billirig: cycles

I’ June 2020 the Company committed to another 3 months of customer. d;scounts from dufy t to September 2020
with modifigd appllcatron Domestic custorners received a cradit up: to $100 per ‘month, and Commercial ~

Commerclat accounts recewed a 60% credit during thrs penod

As a result of the discounts prowded the Compamfs net electncty sales by ye_ and, reduced by 40% frorn pre- i
covid times. . The' Company has reqmred ﬁnanclal assitance subsequent to yea and has recelved $425 000:

The details of recent dlsoounts offered are |nctuded in Note 27 Subsequent events..,

from pre-covid times. The decline was 3¢ a resulf of reduced demand for rmports téducing cargo: throughput and
canceliation of cruise ‘vessel visits. The Authority atso of'fered assmtance fo. |ts custorners through rent T

The Authority received relief assistance from the Govemment by takung over the responSIbltty of repayment of the-"
Authorltys ADB loan for2 years to assist with |ts cash ﬂow in sustamlng |ts_bu 'ess operatlons A

¢} Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars, which is the functional and reporting
currency of the Group and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand ($000) except where indicated
otherwise.

3  Significant accounting policies -

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements, and have been applied consistently by Group entities.

a) Consolidation

Controfled entities

The controlled entities are all those entities (including special purpose entities) over which the controlling entity
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies. Conirolled entities are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the controlling entity. They are de-consolidated from the date that control
ceases, Inter-group transactions, balances and unrealized gains and losses on transactions between members of
the group are eliminated in full. The accounting policies of the controlled entities are consistent with the policies
adopted by the controlling entity.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

b} Investment in associates :
Associates are thase entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and
operating policies. Signiftcant influence is presumed fo exist when the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting power of another entity.

Investments in associates and jointly controlled entities are accounted for using the equity method and are
recognised initially at cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of the surplus or defiait, after adjustiments to
align the accounting palicies with those of the Group, from the date that significant influence or joint control
commences uniil the date that significant influence or joint control ceases.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted investee, the carrying amount of the
investment, including any long-term investments that form part thereof, is reduced to zero, and the recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made paymenis on
behalf of the investee.

¢} Revenue recognition

Goods and services

Revenue comprises the amounts received and receivable for goods and services supplied to customers in the
ordinary course of business. Revenue is stated exclusive of Value Added Tax. Revenue from the sale of goods in
the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
returns, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue s recognised when persuasive evidence exists that the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been fransferred to the customer, recovery of the consideration is
probable, and the revenue and associated costs can be estimated and measured reliably. If it is probable that
discounts will be granted and the amount can be measured reliably, then the discount is recognised as a
reduction of revenue as the sales are recognised.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate discounts estimated
future cash receipls through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount. The
method applies this yield fo the principal outstanding to determine interest income each period.

Fee and commission

Fees and commission income and expense that are integrai to the effective interest rate of a financial asset or
financial liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest. For example, loan establishment fees,
together with related direct costs, are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate on a
loan cnce drawn.

Fess and commissions that relate to the execution of a significant act are recognised when the significant act has
been completed.

Fees charged for providing ongoing services (for example, maintaining and administering existing facilities) are
recognised as income over the period the service is provided.

Dormant account fees are charged on accounts which have been dormant greater than two years at a rate of
fifteen dollars per quarter.

Rental income
Rental income from investment property is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and
Expenses on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note

3  Significant accounting policies (continued)

¢} Revenue recognition {continued)

Government grants and funding

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with Government and other agencies is recognised when the Group
obtains conirol of the fransferred assets {cash, goods, services, or property), and:

= |tis probable that the economic benefits or service potential related to the asset will flow to the Group and
can be measured reliably; and

* The transfer is free from conditions that require the asset to be refunded or returned to the Government if
the conditions are not fulfilled.
Revenue from goverment grants and funding is measured at the fair value of the assets (cash, goods, services
or property) fransferred over to the Group at the time of transfer.

To the extent that there is a condition attached that would give rise to a liability to repay the grant amount or io
returm the granted asset, a deferred revenue liability is recognised instead of the revenue. Revenue is then
recoghised instead only once the Group has satisfied these conditions.

Crown appropriation

Crown Appropriation revenue is provided by the Cook Islands Government through the Budget Estimates and
approved by the Appropriation Bill. Revenue is intended to be spent within the same financial year. Revenue
received but not spent at balance date is recorded as defetred revenue liability in the Statement of Financial
Position.

Aid funding -

Aid Funding revenue relates fo funding received from aid donors for specified projects. Funding received in
advance is recorded as deferred revenue liability and recognised as revenue when allowable costs are incurred
and any conditions are met. Where allowable costs have been incurred but funding not received, the Corporation
recognises a receivable up to the amount of approved funding.

Concessionary Loans

When the Group receives a loan at an interest rate that is lower than market terms (concessionary loan), the
difference between the loan proceeds and the fair value of the loan (calculated using market terms} is recognised
as revenue if there are no conditions attached to the loan. To the extent that there are conditions attached 1o the
loan that would result in early repayment of the loan if these conditions are safisfied, a deferred revenue liability
for the amount of the difference between the loan proceeds and the fair value of the loan is recognised. Revenue
is then recognised as the Group satisfies its conditions.

Insurance proceeds
Proceeds from insurance claims are recognised as revenue when claims have been assessed and approved. This
revenue is measured at the fair value of the amount received or receivable.

d) Expense recognition
Expenses are recognised in the stafement of comprehensive revenue and expenses on an accrual basis.

Salaries & wages
Salaries & wages are recognised on an accrual basis and include employer contributions for the government
superannuation scheme.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 3  Significant accounting policies (continued)

d} Expense recognition {continued)

interest expense

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost is recognised in the Statement of
Comprshensive Revenue & Expenses as it accrues using the effective interest method.

Lease paymenfs

Leases entered into by the Group as lessee are operating leases, and the operating lease payments are
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue & Expenses on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

e) Taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognised in surplus or deficit
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in changes
in net assets/equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable surplus or deficit for the year, using tax rates
enacted or subslantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

A tax benefit is recognised in equity for dividends paid by Cook Islands tax paying entities to another Cook Islands
tax payer.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences betwaen the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purpeses. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:
» temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable surplus or deficits; and

® temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it
is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they
reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax the Group takes into account the impact of uncertain tax
posiiions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. The Group believes that its accruals for tax
liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors, including interpretations of
tax law and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of
judgements about future events. New information may become available that causes the Group to change its
Judgement regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense
in the periad that such a determination is made.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offsst current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different
tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax lizbilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and
liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporling date and are reduced to the extent that it is no fonger probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised.
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Cook Iskands Invesiment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 3  Significant accounting policies (continued)

NON FINANCIAL ASSETS

f)  Investment Property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for
sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or setvices or for administrative
purposes. Investment property is measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently at cost less
accumulated depreciation.

Residential buildings held for the primary purpose of providing low income housing have been classified as
property, plant, and equipment.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisifion of the investment property. The cost of self-
constructed investment property includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the investment property to a working condition for their infended use and capitalised
borrowing costs.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds
from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue
and Expenses.

dg) Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment is held at cost. Cost of buiidings has been determined from historical cost or
deemed cost based on previous valuations performed as follows:

i) Buildings transferred to the Group by the Cook Islands Gevernment are included at their deemed cost, being
the valuation initially recorded in the 1996/7 statutory accounts of the Government of the Cook Istands iess
accumulated depreciation. Other assets donated by the Cook Islands Government {ultimate parent) or
transferred from Ministries of the Cook Islands Government are recoghised at deemed cost being the value
nominated by the Ministry of Finance and Economic Management for the Cook Islands or relevant Ministry
and are recognised direcfly in equity as a confribution from owner.

ii) For all other items of properly, plant and equipment the cost is the value of the considerztion given to
acquire the assets and the value of other directly aftributable costs which have been incurred in bringing the
assets to the location and condition necessary for their infended service,

Cost includes expenditure thal is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the following:

* the cost of materials and direct labour;

= any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use;

» when the group has an obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate of the costs of

dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located; and

= capitalised borrowing costs.

Refer to note 14 for further details.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 3  Significant accounting policies {continued)

g} Properiy, plant and equipment (confinued)

Depreciation

Bepreciation is charged on a straight line basis so as to write off the cost of the fixed assets to their expected
residual value over their estimated useful lives. Freshald land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives are

as follows:

Leased land and leasehold improvements term of the lease
Buildings 5-50 years
Furniture and fittings 4-10 years
Plant and equipment 5-20 years
Motor vehicles 3-10 years
Rescue fire vehicles 3-20 years
Office equipment 2-10 years
Marine equipment 5 years
Wharf structure 40 years
Whart fixtures 5-20 years
Rurways 5-99 years
Electricity distribution nefwork 5-20 years

Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the Jease term and their useful fives unless it is reasonably
ceriain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the [zase term.

An assel’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount, or recoverable service amount,
if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount or recoverable service amount.

The Group derecognises items of property, plant and equipment andfor any significant part of an asset upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits or service potential is expected from its continuing use. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the surplus or deficit when the asset is derecognised.

When an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration it is initially measured at
fair value. For new assets, fair value is usually determined by reference to the retail price of the same or similar
assets at the time the asset was received. For used assets, fair value is usually determined by reference to
market inflation for assets of a similar type condition and age. When parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property,
plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment (calculated as the difference between the
net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Subsequent costs
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Group. Ongoing repairs and maintenance is expensed as Incurred.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 3  Significant accounting policies (continued)

h} Leases

Group as a lessee

Operating leases are those leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits relating to ownership
of the leased item fo the group. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in surplus or deficit on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The group does not hold any finance leases.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs that are incurred in determining an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term.

Rent received frorm an operating lease is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

i) Intangible assets
Intangible asseis include costs incurred in acquiring and building software and computer systems (software).
Software is amortised using the straight-line method over its expected useful life.

At each reporting date, the intangible assets are reviewed for indicators of impairment if any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the assets are estimated and compared against the existing carry value. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an assets fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the existing
carrying vaiue exceeds the recoverable amount, the difference is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive
Revenue & Expenses.

Costs incurred in planning or evaluating software proposals, or in maintaining systems after implementation are
not capitalised.
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Cook islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 3  Significant accounting policies (continued)

I} Impairment of non-financial asseis

At each reporting date, the group reviews the camrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than deferred tax
assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assets
recoverable amount is estimated.

The group’s assets that do not generate separate cash inflows are tested for impairment as part of testing the
overall group’s assets.

Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses.

For assets an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Recognition

Financial assets are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable fo its
acquisition or issue.

Classification & measurement

The Group's financial assets are all classified and measured at amortised cost.

The Group does not have any financial assets categorised as fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following conditions are met and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
= it is held within & business model whose objective is o hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and
= the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely paymenis of
principal and interest.

Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other
gains/{losses), together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as a separate
line item in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses.

k) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash holdings, foreign currency cash holdings, short term cash investments
and are carried at amortised cost in the Statement of Financial Position.

) Loans

Within the Group, Bank of the Cook Islands ("the Bank™) issues loans, These are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and that the group does not intend to
sell immediately or in the near term. They arise when the Bank provides money to a debfor with no intention of
trading the loans and advances. After initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less any impairment loss.

Loans include direct finance provided to customers such as current accounts and term loans.

m} Term deposits
This comprises interest-bearing deposits held with other banks and are measured at amortised cost in the
Statement of Financial Position.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 3  Significant accounting policies (continued}

n) Income tax receivable

This comprises income tax receivable as income tax payments made exceed the current tax due. This will be
setfled by receipt of refund or used to meet future income tax payments and is measured at amortised cost in the
Statement of Financial Position.

o} Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments are used to manage foreign exchange risk exposure arising from the Group's end
of period valuations of certain loans denominated in SDR (Special Drawing Rights - Unit of account used by the
International Monetary Fund and other infernational organizations. Its value is based on a basket of key
international currencies that currently consists of the euro, yen, pound sterling and the US doltar).

The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The Group has not
adopted hedge accounting.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is enterad into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value at each balance date with the resulting gain or loss recognized in
The full fair value of a forward foreign exchange derivative is classified as current as the contract is due for
settlement within 12 months of balance date.

The Group does not hold any derivative financial instruments at 30 June 2020 (2019: nil).

p) Trade, sundry and other receivables
These include frade receivables from customers, other receivables, including accrued interest on term deposits.
These are carried at amorfised cost in the Statement of Financial Position.

q) Identification and measurement of Impairment

A forward-looking expected loss model is applied to financial assets in accordance with IPSAS 41 Financial
Instruments . All of the Group’s financial assets are classified as amortised cost.

The Group performs an impairment assessment based on expected credif loss (ECL) on financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

The ECL refers fo the weighted average of the credit [osses of financial instruments that are weighted
by the risk of default. Credit loss refers fo the difference between all contractual cash flows receivable
from the confract and all cash flows expected to be received, discounted at the original real interest rate
by the Group, that is, the present value of all cash shortages.

ECL is calculated based on a function of the probability of default, loss given default and exposure at defauit.
The Group appplies ECL model separately for each financial asset category measured atl amortised cost.
The Group considers impairment using the ECIL. model far the following financial assets that are not measured at
FVTPL:

* Cash and cash equivalents

* Term Deposits

" Trade, sundry and cther receivables

= Banking portfolio investments

i} Impairment of Cash and cash equivalents and Term deposits
ECL for Cash and cash equivalents and Term deposits is calculated based on industry standard Probability of
default and loss given default based on the credit rating of each financial instituion where funds are held.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes fo the financial statements (continued)

Note 3  Significant accounting policies (continued)
q) ldentification and measurement of Impairment {continued)

i} Impairment of Trade, sundry and other receivables
In assessing impairment the Group uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of recoveries and
fhe amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgement as fo whether current economic and credit
conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical frends.

As trade and other receivables are normally paid within 30 days and do not have a significant financing
component the Group has applied the simplified approach in IPSAS 41 and therefore only recognising lifetime
ECL. Entities within the Group that have signiifcant customer base, and therefore deblors, have developed a
provision matrix to determine ECL. In pariicular, Te Aponga Uira and Te Mana Uira o Araura, as these entities
each operate in only one geographic segment the matrix is based on customer type {Demand, Commercial or
Domestic) and debt age (no. days) taking into account historical loss experience for each segment adjusted for
forward looking estimates

ifi) Impairment of Banking portfolio investments
Segmentation of financial assets:

The Group assesses whether the credit risk has increased significanily on an individual or collective basis. For the
purposeas of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of account
instrument fype.

The Groups Banking portfolio investments are grouped by the following segments:

- Business

- Personal
- Mortgage

The Group assesses whether the credit risk of the relevant financial instruments has increased significantly since
the inilial recognition, and measures its expected credit losses ("ECL") and recognises iis loss provision and
changes from the prior period in the following cases:

(i) if the credit risk of the financial iInstrurent has not increased significantly, since the initial recagnition, {*
internal risk grade = “Pass”), the Group measures its loss provision based on the amount equivalent to the
ECL of the financial insirument in the next 12 months;

(ii) if the credit risk of the financlal instrument has increased significantly since the initial recognition, the Group
measures ils loss provision based on the amount of lifetime expected credit foss (ECL) of the financial
instrument. {* Internal risk grades = special mention, substandard, doubtful and ioss}

Under the above circumstances, regardless of whether the Group’s assessment of credit losses is based on
a single financial instrument or a combination of finangial instruments, the increase or reversal of
the loss provision resulling there from is included in the current profit and loss as an impairment loss or gain.

The Group applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (*ECL") on Banking portfolio
investments. Assets migrate through the following three stages based on the change of their credit quality, since
initial recognition.

Stage 1: 12-month ECL - For financial mstruments with no significant increase in credit risk (SICR) after initial
recognition, (internal risk grade = "Pass”), expected credit losses in the next 12 months are recognised.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note

3  Significant accounting policies {continued)
q) identification and measurement of Impairment (continued)

iif) Impairment of Banking portfolio investments (continued)
Stage 2: Lifefime ECL — not credit impaired — For financial instruments with significant increase in credit risk
{SICR) since initial recognition (internatl risk grade = "Special mention™), but no objective evidence of impairment,
lifetime expected credit losses are recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit impaired — For financial assets that show objective evidence of impairment at the
end of the reporting period, lifetime expected credit losses are recognised. This stage comprises all accounts that
are credit impaired or in default (internal risk grades = "Substandard”, “Doubtful® or “L.oss”).

Under the above circumstances, regardless of whether the Group’s assessment of credit losses is based on
a single financial instrument or a combination of financial instruments, theincrease or reversal of
the loss provision resulting there from is included in the current profit and loss as an impairment loss or gain.

Impairment is assessed for loans at a collective and a specific individual level.

The Groups intemal credit rating adopted from the guidelines provided by the Banking Prudential
Statement (BPS03) initially defines whether the financia! assets are assessed at a collective or a specific
individual level:

Cotlective Provision

Impairment on financial assets with an internal credit rating of “Pass” or "Specdial Mention” is calculated through
the ECL model.

"Pass" if the asset is fully protected by the current sound worth and paying capacity of the  borrower and the
borrower  is performing in accordance with contractual terms and is expected fo continue to do so.

"Special Mention” if the asset is past due for the payment of principal or interest for more than 30 (thirty) days but
less than 90 {ninety) days; or although currently protected, exhibits potential weaknesses which may,
if not corrected, weaken the asset or inadequately protect the Group's position at some future date.

All loans classified in the personal segment are assessed in the ECL model irrespective of their probability of
default and form part of the collective provision.

Some financial assets with an intemal credit rating of “Substandard”, “Doubtful® or "Loss” and have been
assessed individually for the likelihood of fulure cradit losses through the individual provisioning method
and do notrequire & specific individual provision are assessed in the ECL model and form part of the
collective provision. -

Specific Individual Provigsion

Financial assels with an internal credit rating of “Substandard”, “Doubtful® or *Loss’ are individually
assessed using the individual provisioning method and consider the likelihood of future credit losses
by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time value of money, past evenis, security held, current
conditions and forecasts of fulure economic conditions.

"Substandard" if the asset is past due for the payment of principal or interest for more than 90 days but less

than 180 days; or is a renegoliated loan which has had its terms or interest rate modified because of
weaknesses or deterioration in the obligor's financial condition or ability to repay.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 3  Significant accounting policies {continued)
q} ldentification and measurement of Impairment {continued)

iii} Impairment of Banking portfolio investments (continued)
“Doubtiul" if the asset is past due for the payment of principal or interest for more than 180 days but less
than 360 days; orexhibits all the weaknesses of asubstandard asset and, in addition, is not
because these weakenesses make collection in full highly questionable and improbabla.

"Loss"-if the asset is past dus for the payment of principal or interest for more than 360 days, unless
such an asset is well secured and legal action has actually commenced and the time fo realise on
collateral or on a guarantee relafing to the asset does not exceed 180 days, had been characterised as “Doubtfut”
on account of any ‘pending event and the eventconcemed has not oceurred and the asset is now past
due for the payment of principal or inferest for more than 540 days, whether or not the event is still
pending; orregardless of its past due status it is otherwise considered uncollectible or considered
to be of such litite value that its confinuance as an asset on the books of the Group is not warranted provided
that a Loss classification shall not preclude the possibility of recovering the asset orsecuring a salvage
value for it.

ECL model
ECL are estimates of credit losses and are determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the
time value of money, past evenls, current conditions and forecasis of future economic conditions.

The Group’s ECL is calcutated on a persegment basis with the corresponding PD, LGD and Cure Rate
and is the sum of all segment ECLs.

Where:

- Probability of default (PD): the probability that a counterparty will default;

- Loss given defauit (LGD): the loss that is expected to arise in the event of default

- Cure Rate (CR): the historical average % of Defaulted Loans that migrated out of a defaulted status

- Exposure at default (EAD): the estimated outstanding amount of credit exposure at {he time of defauit, which
is the outstanding loan amount that is at risk of default at a certain point in time.

- Discount Factor: adjustment to calculate the impact of a future payment at time 0; which is assumed to be
reporting date. Calculated from the time 't (12 month or lifetime)} and the effective Interest Rate (EIR)

The provision for loan impairment is deducted from leans in the Statement of Financial Position and the
movement for the reporting pericd is reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue & Expenses.

When a loan, within the loan book, is uncollectible, sither partially or in full,it is written off against the related
provision for loan impairment. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are taken to the Statement
of Comprehensive Revenue & Expenses.

Where impairment losses recognised in previous periods have subsequently dacreased or no longer exist, such
impairment losses are reversed in the Staterment of Comprehensive Revenue & Expenses.

Refer to Note 3 'Critical estimates and judgements used in applying accounting policies' below for update on
estimates and judgements due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is
created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 3  Significant accounting policies (continued)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Recagnition

Financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through surplus or deficit,
fransaction costs that are directly aftributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification & measurement

Ali financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities and are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate and include: trade and other payables, banking customer deposits, related party payables,
dividend payable, and income tax payable.

r)  Employee benefits

Long-term employee benefits

The Group's net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to
determine its present value. Remeasurements are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and
Expenses in the period in which they arise.

Shori-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the
amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

s) Provisions

The Group recognises provisions when there is a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The
amount recognised is the best estimate of the consideration required fo setfle the present obligation at the
reporiing date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation at the reporting date.
Where a provision is measurad using the cash fiows estimated to seftle the present obfigation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows.

t} Dividends
Dividends or similar distributions are recognised only when the shareholder's or the Group’s right to recejve
payments is established.

Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged cancelled or
expires.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note

3  Significant accounting policies {continued)

PRESENTATION
u) Offsetting of income and expenses
Income and expenses are not ofiset unless required or permitted by an accounting standard. This generally arises
in the following circumstances:
= where gains and losses arise from a Group of similar transactions such as foreign exchange gains and
losses.

= where amouints are collected on behalf or third parties where the Group is, in substance, acting as an agent
only, or

where costs are incurred on behalf of customers from whom the Group is reimbursed.

v}  Offsetting of finaneial assets and liabilities
Asssts and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position only where
there is:

= a current enforceable legal right to offset the asset and liability, and

= an intention and ability to seffle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simutaneously.

w) Statement of cash flows

For eash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalent inciudes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with other fimancial instilutions, and other short term, highly liquid, investments that are readily convertible
fo cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Certain cash flows have been netted in order to provide more meaningful disclosure as many of the cash flows
are received and disbursed on behalf of customers and reflect the activities of the customer rather than those of
the Group. These include customer loans and advances, customer deposits, and related party balances.

x) Value added fax

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added tax {VAT) except where the
amount of VAT incurred is not recoverable from the Revenue Management Division (RMD). In these
circumstances, the VAT s recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of VAT included. The net amount of VAT recoverable from,
or payable to the RMD is included as, other assats or other liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash Flow on a net basis. The VAT components of cash flows arising
from investing and financing activities, which are recoverable from, or payable to, the RMD are classified as
operating cash flows.

y) Contingent liabilities i :
A contingent liability is a liability of sufficient uncertainty that it does not qualify for recognition as a provision, but
there is a possible obligafion that is higher than remote.

Zz} Related parties

The Group regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control individually or jointly, or
to exercise significant influence over the Group, or vice versa. Members of key management are regarded as
related parties and comprise the directors and senior management of the Cook Islands Investment Corporation
and Group.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note

_The es’tlmahun uncertamty is. assoc:ated w:th

3  Significant accounting policies (continued)

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS USED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with IPSAS. However, there are a number of critical
accounting treatments which include complex or subjective judgments and esfimates that may affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectafions of future events that are believed
fo be reasonable under the circumstances.

An explanation of the judgements and estimates made by the Group in the process of applying its accounting
policies, that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are set out
below.

Credit provisioning

The accounting policy relating to measuring the impairment of banking portfolio investments {loans & advances)
requires Bank of the Cook Islands to assess impairment at least at each reporting date. The credit provisions
raised represent management's best estimate of the fosses incurred in the loan portfolio at balance date based on
their experienced judgemeant.

The use of such judgements and reasonable estimates is considered by management to be an essential part of
the process and does not impact on refiability.

Management regularly reviews and adjusts the estimates and methodologies as improved analysis becomes
available. Changes in these assumptions and methodologies could have a direct impact on the level of provision
and impairment charge recorded in the financial statements.

Refer to Note 3(g) and Note 23(ii) for details of credit impairment provisions.

COVID- 9 |mpact on credut performance

The Group_s approach to incorporating the effect of Co\r|d-1 9on the bankmg portfo!lo lnvestments ECL
calculatlons was guided by a recogriition that uncertalr!ty has mcreased mgmﬁcanﬂy since pnor year and
;estlmahon uncertalnty has increased as a resu!t

..~ the-extent and duration of the disruption 1o busmesses ansmg from the actlons by gevemments bus;nesses :
* ‘and:consumers to prevent and contain the spread of the virus; -’ . L Lo R
it .the extent and duration.of the expecied eeonomlc downiurn (and forecasts for key eoonumnc factors ot
" including GDP and CPIY; and ‘
i ‘the effeclweness of government measures thal have been and quI be P
~and consumers through this dxsruptuon and economic downturn .

place to spport bus:hessee3— s

Aithough the approach to ECL calculatlons and. formuiae remaln unchanged from the pnor year, the Group ha %
:updated relevant clata :npuis o reﬂect the |mpacts of Cowd-19 on credlt performance o B

Key Cowd-19 |mpacts were:. : : S
= Macroeconom ic data updated to reﬂect changes |n forecasted ecoriomic smpacts Ll : :
o Restagmg of [oans between stage 1and stage 2 where mgmﬁcant lncrease :n credﬂ nsk (SICR) i observed
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 3

Significant accounting policies (continued)

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS USED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

COVID-19 impact on credit performance (continued)

Macroeconomic Data

The Group has used the Government's actual and forecasted economic indicators of GDP and CPI as issued in

the Government of the Cook Islands Budget Book 2021 — 2024.

e R’:L;':"DP GDP implied | Nominal
Giowith deflator CPl YoY GDP YoY
[ 01/06/19| 5.3 101.4 4.40%|
[0a/ce/z0 5. 102.8] 7.80%
| o1/06/21 103.2| -2.50%
| o1/oe/22| 1o 9.10%
io i ___10.00%
‘ 5.20%

Average |

Stage 1 to Stage 2 loans
An assessment of all loans not individually provided for was undertaken to determine whether there was a SICR
that would require loans to be restaged from Stage 1 to Stage 2.

The following criteria was used:

- Given that Tourism is a major income stream in the Cook Islands, L13 Housing Investment and L18 Tourism
loans assessed in greater detail;

- Various Covid-19 relief initiatives, such as repayment holidays and payment deferrals have been offered to
customers in the year ended 30 June 2020 recognising the potential detrimental impact of COVID-19. Such
offers, if accepted, are not automatically considered to indicate SICR but are used as necessary within the
broader set of indicators used to assess and grade customer facilities;

- Loans have been considered for restaging based on loan performance changes from pre Covid-19 period to
year end (Impacts of Covid-19 commenced during the month of March 20). Subseguent months have also
been considered in assessment of loan condition to incorporate the most up to date information as Covid-19
impacts continue to unfold

Key conditions for restaging include:
- Pass loans in arrears at 31 March 20 have been restaged from stage 1 to stage 2;
- Pass loans that have qualified for Covid-19 Phase 1 relief offered by the Group have been restaged from
Stage 1 to Stage 2, however, if the relief concessions have not been used (i.e. borrowers have continued to
meet normal repayments terms) these have remained in Stage 1;

- Covid-19 Phase 1 relief ended on 30 June 20. Phase 2 commenced 1 July 20. Any Pass loans that applied
for Phase 2 relief have been restaged from Stage 1 to Stage 2.
Pass loans that qualified for and used Phase 1 relief but have not applied for Phase 2 relief have remained
in Stage 1. These loans have been assessed and have shown to be subsequently meeting repayments per
loan terms up till at least September 2020,

The Covid-19 impacts and data input adjustments has resulted in a 55% increase in the banking portfolio
investments ECL reported in these financial statements compared with pre-Covid times. The rapidly evolving
consequences of COVID-19, economic uncertainties and government, business and consumer responses could
result in significant adjustments to the allowance within the current and next financial years. Expected credit
losses reported by the Group should be considered as a best estimate.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 3  Significant accounting policies (continued)
CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS USED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

COVID-19 impact on Trade receivables

Due to the impacts of COVID-19 on the Group and ifs customers, an assessment was undertaken o consider the
necessity for an additional "management overlay” to reflect the current economic uncertainty and situtaion within
the Cook lslands. In particular for Te Aponga Uira, a management overlay was determined by assessing the
aging of frade receivables pre-Covid and comparing this to post-Covid conditions to develop a worsening ratio.
This ratio was then applied to the year end ECL determined by the existing ECL model (matrix} in use. As a result,
the provision for doubtful debts increased from prior year by $588,841.

For other entities within the Group where the customer base is not as substantial, adjustments to year end
provisioning have been made to reflect subsequent customer receipts as this is considered fo be the best form of
evidence of collectability.

COVID-19 impact on impairment considerations for Property, plant and equipment

The Group has considered the impacts of Covid-19 on its property, plant and equipment and whether impairment
exists as a result. The Groups assets remain in use with no deterioration in assets or shortening of useful lives as
a result of the pandemic. No excess capacity is consisdered to exist, with existing asset levels considerad
necessary to meet minimum operating requirements. The Group conciuded that whilst there has been significant
impacts on the Cook Islands economy as a whole, given the nature of the Group's activities, in particular, the
essential service nature of the utilities and asset management and asset holding funclions the entities provide on
behalf of the Cook Islands Government, no impairment of property, plant and equipment is considered to exist as
a result of Covid-19 impacts.

OTHER JUDGEMENTS

Deferred tax assets

The Group has judged, based on current and recent past performance and budgei/business plans in place, that
there will be sufficient taxable income in the future to utilise taxable differences thaf are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future and has therefore recognised a deferred tax asset. Refer to Note 18,

Yield related fees .
The group has reviewed all fees and has judged that loan establishment fees are integral to the yield of the
product, These fees have been included as part of the calculation of the effective interest rate.

Member's valuation of sefecled fixed assails

Certain fixed assets have been included in the Statement of Financial Position based on valuations performed by
the Members. This is due to difficulties experienced in obtaining information relating to these assets. This
freatment is a departure from IPSAS 17 Property, Piant, and Equipment. The audit report of these financial
statements is qualified in this ragard. Refer to Note 14.

Worlcin progress receivables
Work in progress receivables represent managements best estimate of percentage of completion for capital
projects. Management consider that costs incurred to balance date falrly represent the stage of completion.

CHANGES TO ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies are consistent with the those applied in the preparation of the Group's annual financial
statemenis for the year ended 30 June 2019,
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Cook [slands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Note 3  Significant accounting policies (continued)

CORRECTION OF ERROR

During 2020, the Group discovered that an amendment made to the VAT Act in 2014 that introduced VAT on
imported services had not been applied by the Group, in particular by Bank of the Cook Islands Limited. As a
consequence, VAT payable and the related costs have been understated. The error has been corrected by
restating retained eamings at 1 July 2019 and restating each of the affected financial statement line items for the
30 June 2019 financial year. The table below summarises the impacts on the Group's financial statements.

Impact of correction of error on Group

As
previously Adjustments As restated
reported
income Tax Debtor 1,224 81 1,305
Property, plant and equipment 189,044 15 189,058
Others 180,037 - 180,037
Total Assets 370,305 96 370,401
Sundry creditors and accruals (5,465) (422) (5,887)
Others {114,483) - {114,483)
Total Liabilities (119,248) (422)  (120,370)
Total Corprehensive Income for the period (11,406) 85 {11,341)
Others (238,951) 261 {238,690)
Total Equity (250,357) 326 (250,031)
Qperating Expenses (52,796) 81) (52,877)
Income Tax (3,076) 16 (3,060)
Others 67.278 - 67,278
Profit/(Loss) 11,406 {65) 11,341

Note 4 New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, certain new standards have been issued which were not
yet effective at balance sheet date and which the Group has not early adopted.:

IPSAS 40 PBE Combinations
The Group has not yet assessed the impact of these standards.

The Group early adopted IPSAS 41 Financial Instruments in the prior year, effective from 1 July 2018.
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Cook islands Investment Corporation
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 5 Sundry Income
Parent

30 June 30 June
In thousarnds of New Zeafand Doflars 2019 2019
Sundry revenue 1,244 361
Social responsibility cost recoveries 604 -
1,848 361
Note 6 Other expenses
Advertising 253 3]
Electricity 905 7
Fees paid to group auditor - audit services 408 111
Fees paid to group auditor - non audit setvices 25 -
Fees paid to other auditors - audit services 15 -
Motor vehicle expenses 254 28
Payment on behalf of Crown 333 333
Staff training expenses 365 13
Travel expenses 187 5
Other operating expenses 3,420 877
Total Other expenses 6,163 1,390

Non-audit services include financial statements compilation and tax compliance services.

Note 7 Employee entitlements

Current

Accrued salaries and wages 202
Annual leave 612
Current employee entitiements 814
Non-current

Long service leave acorual 78
Non-current employee entittements 78
Total employee entitlements 882
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 8

Note 9

Note 10

Cash and cash equivalents

30 June
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2019
Cash on hand -
Cash at bank 1.432
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,432
Term Deposits

30 Juna
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2019
Less than 12 months 713
Over 12 months -
Total term deposits 713
Short term deposils are made for varying periods, depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group and eam interest at the respective short term depasit rate.
Receivables from exchange transactions

30 Jung
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2018
Current receivables 121
Less: impairment allowance (25)
Total receivables from exchange transactions 95
As at 30 June 2020, the ageing analysis of current exchange receivables is as follows:
Group

MNeither past
due or

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars Total impaired <30 days 30-60 days >G50 days
As at 30 June 2019
Tatal receivables from exchange
transactions 5,685 3,865 590 368 863

In thousands of New Zealand Doflar:

As at 30 June 2020
Total receivables from exchange
transactions
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 11  Related parties

__Parent
30.June 30 June

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2019
Related party receivables
Government of the Cook Islands -
Cook Island Property Corporation (NZ) Limited -
Avaroa Gables Limited 128
To Tatou Vai Limited 3
Cook Islands Telecommunication Holdings Limited 6
Te Mana Uira o Araura Limited 24
Ministry of Fareign Affairs And Immigration -
Ministey of Finance and Economic Management 548 "
CIIC Seabed Resources Limited 5. 5 ] 5
Total related party receivables <5081 551 3 E3 165
The balances are repayable on demand, are unsecured and do not bear interest.
Group Parent

30 June 30 June

in thousands of New Zeafand Doflars 219 2019

Dividends receivable

Te Aponga Uira O Tumu-te-Varovaro

Total dividends receivable

In accordance with the requirements of the Cook Islands Government Property Corporation Act 1969, the dividend
receivable from Telecom Cook |slands Limited is paid directly to the ultimate shareholder, the Cook Istands
Government, and therefore the dividend cashflow does not flow through Cook Istands Investment Corporation.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 11  Related parties (continued)

Group Parent

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2020 2019 2020 2019
Related party payables - Current
Government of the Cook Islands 637 643 -
Telecom Cook Islands - - = -
Ministry of Finance and Economic Management 438 6 - -
Banana Court Company Limited - - 5 8
Avaroa Cables Limited - = - =
Te Mana Uira o Araura Limited - - u "
CIIC Seabed Resources Limited 109 109 109 109
Cook Islands Property Corporation (NZ) Limited - - - 20
Cook Islands Government Property Corporation = - 1,401 1,401
Total related party payables - current 1,184 758 1,515 1,538

Group Parent

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2020 2019 2020 2019
Dividends payable
Government of the Cook Islands - - - -
Total dividends payable - - F .

The related party balances do not have fixed repayment terms, are unsecured and no interest is payable.

Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel of the Corporation include the Board of Directors and the senior management team
being the Chief Executive Officer, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Property Manager, GFDD Manager,
Legal Manager and Corporate Relationship Manager.

30 June 30 June
2020 2019
Total Number of Total Number of
remuneration persons remuneration persons
(000's) (000's)
Board of Directors 127 3 125 3
Senior Management 795 7 708 T
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 11

a)

b}

o)

d)

q)

h}

k)

m}

Related parties {continued)

Material related parly income and expenditure:

The Group entities undertake nemerous fransactions with other Government entities in the normal course of their
business including electricity in Rarotonga and Aitutaki, Port and Airport charges, banking services, as well as
property rentals. ‘These transactions are not material, are conducted at commercial rates and have therefore not
been disclosed separately.

The Group provides electricify to various Government entities cutside of the Group through its wholly owned
subsidiary, Te Aponga Uira O Tumu-te-Varovara (Te Aponga). Entities within the Group paid $520,000 (2019:
$661,000) to Te Aponga for electricity services which has been eliminated on consolidation. Electricity goods and
services provided to relafed parlies are {ransacted on nermal trading terms.

The Group provides felecommunication services to various Govemment enfities outside of the Group through its
associate, Telecom Cook Iskands Limited, Entities within the group paid $598,000 (2019: $574,000) to Telecom

Cook Islands for telecommunication services. Communication services provided to related parties are transacied
on normal trading terms.

Many of the properties owned by Cook lslands Government Property Corporation are tenanted by Ministries of the
Government of the Cook Islands. In general, rental incotne is not received for the use of these assefs, as
Government Ministries are nof appropriated for this cost.

The property owned by Cook Islands Property Corporation {NZ) Limited is tenanted by the Ministry of Foreign
Affairs and Immigration. No rental is charged to the tenant,

The Corporation uses the Cook islands Property Corporation (NZ) Limited bank account to pay for NZ payments
when required. These are charged back to the Corporation through the intercompaty balance.

Government appropriation income was received by the Group of $12,237,000 {2019: $7,948,000).

Capital project liabllity relates to project funding received by GIIC from Cook Isfands Government and other funding
agencies for which the completed asset is to be returned ic Crown. The assel is recognised as Work in progress
recefvable in the Statement of Financial Position up until completion when it is returned fo Crown,

Cook Islands Government Property Corporation made a revenue transfer of $576,000 (2019: $543,000) to the
Corporation in accordance with Section 31(2) of the Cook lslands Investment Corporation Act 1988. The transfer
has been recognised as revenue within the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses of the
Corporatiort.

Equity injections for the Group in 2020 was $5,274,000 (2019: $11,515,000} being assets consisting of solar assets,
completed buildings and extensions transferred to the Cook Islands Government Property Corporation during the
year.

The parent received $nil dividends for the year (2019: $1,396,000) from subsidiaries. The Group received $nll tax
benefit (2019: $268,000) in relation to dividends paid to the parent, Cook Iskands Investment Corporation, a tax
paying entity.

Included in trade and other payables is an amount due fo Cook lslands Police of $442 (2019: $14,000) for motor
vehicle registrations administered by Bank of the Cook Islands on behalf of the Cook Islands Police.

During the year the bank eamed motor vehicle registration commissions of $205,000 {2019: $179,000) and social
welfare transaction fees of $164,000 (2019: $149,000) at Bank of the Cook Islands.

Included in banking custemer deposits are deposits from the Grown and other Cook Islands Government
Departments and entities ultimately owned by the Cook Istands Government totalling $30,975,000 (2019:
$34,328,000).

Airport Authority has a loan from the Bank totalling $171,000 (2019: $1,351,000).

Banana Court Company Limited leases land and buildings from Cook Islands Goevernment Property Corporalion.
The company paid leasehold commissions and lease fees of $7,000 (2019: $10,000) during the current year. The
lease is for a period of 30 years from 1 September 1980. For the first 10 years of term the rental was $100 per
annum. For the remaining period the lessee pays to the lessor an amount of 12.5% of the rent or consideration
received from subleasing of the land after tax.

On 3 December 2020 the lease was renewed for a further 30 years from 1 September 2020. The rental continues to
be calculated and payable at an amount of 12.6% of the rent or consideration received from subleasing of the land
after tax. .

Audit fees for Cook Islands Government Property Corporaticn are borne by the Cerporation. The Corporation
provides oversight and management for Cook Islands Government Property Corporation as the 2 entities are
considered fo operate as one.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 12  Banking portiolio investments

The following is a summary of the loans portfolio by industry sector as at 30 June 2020

Group Total Due
within QOver
Cne Year One Year
2019 2019 2019
In thousands of New Zealand O
Agricutiure - - -
Fishing 295 43 252
Pearls - - -
Consumer 10,768 4,414 6,355
Biusiness 21,209 3,000 15,209
Hausing 40,614 3,159 37,455
Staff 3.652 453 3,198
Tourism 10,874 ; 191 10,683
Hire purchase loans - - -
87,412 L 11,260 76,152
LESS:
Provision for doubtful loans 4,642
Provision for hon-performing
interest -
Deferred income 880
Net Portfolio as at 30 June 51,890
Split by:
Current 9,842
Neon - current 72,049
81,801
All loans have been made at varying interest rates, terms and securities. Loans attract the following
interest rates:
Housing 3.8% to 15.4% {2019: 3.8% to 15.49%)
Development (including Business) - 6.4% to 16.5% (2019: 6.4% to 20.5%)
Consumer - 10.25% to 16.5% (2019: 9.5% to 16.5%)
The following significant individual counter-party exposures existed at balance date:
Group 2019
In thousands of New Zealand D
#
Percent of Equity Counter Loan Percentage
Range Parties Balance of Bank's Equity
5-10% ] 8,641 - 44.24%
+10% 1 3,370 16.66%
46
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 12  Banking portfolio investments (continued)

Provision for Losses on Banking Portfolio Investments

Group
30 June
in thousands of New Zealand Doflars 201
The total charge of provisions was made up as follows:
PROVISIONS FOR DOUBTFUL LOANS
Opening balance 3,165
Qpening transfer from Non-performing Interest 2,540
Movement in provision a5 4 result of IFRS 9 (1,740}
Bad debts written out of pravisions {505}
Allowance for hardship -
Provisions for doubtful loans 592
Balance at end 4,642
Net increasef{decrease} in pravision for doubtful
loans 87
PROVISIONS FOR NON-PERFORMING INTEREST
Opening balance 2,540
Movement in provision as & result of IFRS 9

Write off of non-performing loan interest
Write back of non-performing lozn interest
Interest acerued on non-performing foans
Balance at end

Note 13  Inventories

30 June

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2019

Trading stock 4,583
Spare paris B0
Fuels a73
Other 292

Total inventories 5,808
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 14 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

PARENT
Furniture Motor
and ! TOTAL
equipment vehicles
Cost
At 1 July 2018 274 196 470
Additions 32 25 57
Disposals - - -
Transfers/adjustments - - -
At 30 June 2019 306 221 527
Additions 59 A - 59
Disposals - - -
Transfers/adjustments - - -
At 30 June 2020 365 221 586
Pepreciation and
impairment
At 1 July 2018 (228) (133) (361)
Disposals - - -
Depreciation (26) {20} (46)
Impairment . - - -
Transfers/fadjustments - - -
At 30 June 2019 (254) (153) {407)
Disposals - - -
Depreciation (28) (16) (44)
Impairment - - -
Transfers/adjustments - - -
At 30 June 2020 {282) {169) {451)
Net Book Values
At 1 July 2018 46 63 109
At 30 June 2019 52 68 120
At 30 June 2020 83 52 135
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Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note

14 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Determination of Cost:

Buildings are measured at cost. Cost is based on historical costs or deemed cost based on previous valuations
as detailed below:

Rental houses were valued at $1.8 million (2012: $1_8million} by John McElhinney of Rarotonga, a registered
valyer, in May 1999. The valuation includes buildings only and no attermpt has been made to place a valuation on
the land. This May 1999 valuation is the deemed cost applied for these rental houses.

The Rarotonga Hospital Administration Block is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation,

The Court House, Police Headgquarters and Multi Sports Complex are recorded at the value nominated by the
Ministry of Finance and Economic Management for the Cook Istands being the cost of construction.

All other Cook Islands Govemment Property Corporation buildings are stated at deemed cost being valuations
petformed by members and initially recorded in the 1996/97 statutory accounts for the Government of the Cook
Islands less accumulated depreciation.

The Mulgrave Street property in Wellington owned by Cook Isiands Property Gorporation (NZ) Limited was valued
by Darroch Limited in August 2010, for insurance purposes providing depreciated replacement cost of $602,000.
An earlier valuation by DTZ New Zealand in October 2008 placed a market value of $1,500,000 for kand and
buildings in Mulgrave Street. This property is held at cost in the financial statements.

The building owned by Bank of the Cook Islands Limited is valued at cost less accumulated depreciation. This
building was valued at $1,800,000 by Jones Lang LaSelle Hotels Limited in May 2014, The remaining term of the
BCI House lease is 7 years,

Leased Land

Cook Islands Government Property Corporation leased land is stated at deemed cost being the initial value
recorded in the 1296/97 statutory accounts for the Government of the Cook Islands less depreciation where
applicable.

Resfrictions on Disposals
Fixed assets held by Cook Islands Government Property Corporation and its subsidiaries cannot be disposed of
without pricr consent of Cabinet.

Ownership and completeness of assets

These assets disclosed in these financial statements may not be a complete presentation of all assets falling
under the ownership and /or contro! of the Corporation and Group. The assets presented are included on the
basis of the current understanding of the Members at the time the financial statements were prepared.

Transfer of assets from Ministries

These assets are recorded at the value nominated by the Ministry of Finance and Economic Management for the
Cook Islands or retevant Ministry based on the cost of construction and are recognised directly in equity as a
contribution from owner.

Members' valuation of selected fixed assets

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this note, fixed assets have been included in the Statement of Financial
Position based on valuations performed by the Members. As in prior years, historical fixed assets have been
recorded in the financial statements at nil value. This is due to difficulties experienced in obtaining information
relating to these assets, due to loss of historical accounting records.

This treatment is a departure from IPSAS 17 Property, plant and equipment which notes an appraisal of an asset
is normally undertaken by a member of the valuation profession, who holds a recognised and relevant
professional qualification. The audit report of these financial statements is qualified in this regard.

Asset valuation reserve

On 1 October 2020 a valuation was performed by Alexander Napa Consultancy over Te Mana Uira o Araura
Limited's buildings and transformer shelter assets. The total valuation was $1,702,000. The values have been
applied at 30 June 2020. As a resuli of the valuation, a revaluation reserve of $236,000 has been recognised
pertaining fo an uplift in existing asset values, as well as an equity injection of $430,000 to record building and
shelter assets hot previously recognised by the Company.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 15 Intangible Assets

GROUP
in thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Cost

At 1 July 2018
Additions
Transfer

At 30 June 2019
Additions

Carrying
Amount

5,499
102
226

5,827

nsf

Amaortisation and impairment

At 1 July 2018

Transfer

Amortisation for the year
At 30 Juns 2019
Transfer

3,004
94
537

3,635

Net book values

Af 1 July 2018

2,495

Af 30 June 2019

2,192

226

Intangible assets include costs incurred in acquiring and building software and computer systems (software).
Software is amortised using the straight line method over its expected useful life,

Note 16 Investment property

Group
In thousands of New Zealand Doflars

30 June
2019

Opening bakance 1 July
Additions / (Disposals)

Transfer
Depreciation

5,300
252
964

246). (232)

Closing balance at 30 June

CELL 6070 6,284

Investment property includes buildings and premises owned by the Airport Authority, Ports Authority, and
Cook Islands Property Corporation (NZ) Limited. tnvestment properly is carmied at cost.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 17 Trade and other payables

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 30 June
2019

Trade and other payables from exchange

transactions
Trade creditors 265
Interest accrual -
Provisions -
Other payables and accruals 324

Total trade and other payables from exchange

fransactions ; 589

Trade and other payables from non- exchange
transactions

Value added tax
Total trade and other payables from hon-
exchange transactions

Total trade and other payables

Provisions

In thousands of New Zealand Dolfars

QOpening land lease provision
Additional provision made in the period
Provision utlised in the period

Closing land lease provision

Opening other provision
Additional provision made in the period
Closing other pravision

Total Provision

Included in Provisions is land lease provision related to outstanding rent reviews and lease payments fo
landowners that are expected to be settied within the next 12 months. The Group has estimated the
provision based on the current siatus of negotiations with landowners and other available information.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 18 Taxes

. Parent

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2020 2019
Income tax receivable
Income tax receivable {payable) c¢/f 1 July 718
Reclassified from / {to) tax payable -
Reclassified from fulure income tax benefit
Income tax on current year surplus (213)
Income tax paid 265
Income tax benefit on dividends paid -
Income tax receivable 30 June 770
Deferred tax asset
Deferred tax asset off 1 July 2
Reclassified from deferred tax liability -
Impact of NZ IPSAS 41 Opening Adjustment -
Deferred tax on current year surplus : 3
Deferred tax asset 30 June 5

Income tax payable

Income tax payable c/f 1 July
Reclassified to tax receivable
Income {ax on current year surplus
Income tax paid

Tax benefit on dividends paid

Tax penalties

Income tax payable 30 June

Deferred tax liability

Deferred tax liability cff 1 July
Deferred tax on current year surplus
Reclassified fo deferred tax asset

Deferred tax liability 30 June

Tax Losses

Opening tax losses
Utilisation of tax losses
Addition of tax losses

Closing tax losses 30 June
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Cook Islands investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 18 Taxes {continued)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Parent
In thousands of New Zealand Doflars 2019 2019
Restated

Surplus before {axation for the year 14,401 1,064
(Surplus)/deficit for tax exempt entities (2,301): -
Equity accounted earnings from associate (71 -
Profit excluding tax 12,029 1,064
Prima facie taxation at 20% 2422 213
Difference for tax at other rates (NZ 30%) 1 -
Tax effect of non-assessable income (107 -
Tax effect of hon-deductible expenses 428 -
Tax effect on prior period adjustments -
Tax on dividend distributed to Government by fax
exempt entity 872 -
Taxable income not recognised in accounts (548 -
Application of prior year {ax losses 8 -
Additional tax losses accumulated -
Tax impact on Leases accounting under IFRS 16 -
Income tax expense 3,060 = 213
Income tax expense is represented by:

Current 213

Deferred -

213

Income tax losses carried forward:

Individual entities within the group have combined carried forward tax losses of $1,559,926 (2019: $446,769).
These tax losses are unable to be offset and can only be used by the individual companies. These losses have
not been recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.

These tax losses have no expiry date provided there is 40% continuity in ownership and the taxation laws in
relation to these do not change.

Within the group, Cook Islands Government Property Corporation is exempt from taxation under the Income Tax
Act 1997,
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 19 Investment in shares
The recenciliation of non-current investments Is as follows:

Parent
Carrying

Amount Fair Value

In thousands of New Zealand Doflars

Fimancial instruments at cost

Investment in Shares
Opening balance at 1 July 2018
Additional investments made
Invesiments sold
Af 30 June 2019
Additional investments made
Investments sold i
At 30 June 2020 128 128 - -

Thera have been no changes io investments in shares during the 2020 period.

Shares held at year end relate to the Group’s investment in Asian Development Bank (ADB). The shares are held within
the Group by Cook Islands Government Property Corporation.

Note 20 (a) Investment in Associates
These financial statements include the financial statements of the Group and the contrclled entities listed in the
following table:

Associate entilies are those in which the Corporation has a substantial shareholding and in whose commercial and
financial policy decisions it participates but does not have any controlling interest.

Telacom Cook Islands Limited is incorparated in the Cook Islands and provides telecommunication services to the Cook
Islands, The Group's interest in Telecom Cook lslands Limited is held by Cook Islands Telecommunication Heldings
Limited. Cruring 2020 Telecom Cook Islands Limited changed its balance date from 31 December to 31 Margh.

CIIC Seabad Resources Limited was established during the 2018 periad. The prindipal activity of CIIC Seabed
Resources Limited is the exploration, classification, exploitation, marketing and selling of polymetallic nadules within the
Cook Istands Exclusive Economic Zone and the Cook Islands assigned area within the Clarion Clipperton Zone. The
Company is 50% owned by the Cook Islands Invesiment Corporation and 50% by GSR-CI Limited. The ultimate Parent
Company of GSR-CI Limited is Global Sea Minerat Resources NV, a Company incorporated and registered in Belgium.

. Total Assets |Tatal Tatal
Granership Liahilitias | Ot IN69me (o sititloss)
2019
Telecom Cook Islands Limited (12 manths
to 31/12/18) 40% 41,539 11,708 30,500 15,103
CIIC Seakad Resourcas Limited {12
months to 30/6/19) (unaudited) 50% 3,788 4,148 - (211}
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual repott for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 20 (a) Investment in Associates (continued)

Investment in aszociates - Group

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 2019
cic Total
Telectam Caok Seabed
Islands Limitstd  Resources
Limited
Equity aceounted investee
Opening balance at 1 July 10,983 - 10,4983
Investment at cost - - .
Share of profit!floss) 5,071 - 5,071
Dividend received (5,000) - {5.000)
Balance at 30 June 11,054 - 11,054

Note 20 (b} Investment in Subsidiarles

Te Mana Uira o Araura Limited (TMU} (formerly Aitutaki Power Supply Limited } is a company registered in the Cook Islands.
TMU was incorporated on 30 June 2017.

The share capital of the Company ks §1,000 divided into 1,000 ordinary shares of §1 each.

The Company's shareholders are:

- Cook Islands Government Property Corporation — 899 shares

- Cook Islands Investment Corporation — 1 share

To Tatou Vai Limited (TTV) is a company registered in the Cook Islands. TTV was ingorporated on the 25th of August 2017.

The share capital of the Cornpany is $100,000 divided into 100,000 ordinaty shares of §i each.
The Company’s shareholders are:

- Cook Isiends Government Praperly Corporation — 50,000 shares

- Cook Islands Investment Corporation — 50,000 shares

Avaroa Cables Limited (ACL} Is & company registered in the Cook Islands. ACL was Incorporated on the 24th of Marsh 2017

The share capital of the Company is $1,000 divided into 1,000 ordinary shares of §1 each.
The Company's shareholiers are:

- Cook Islands Government Property Corporation — 500 shares

- Cook Islands Investment Corporation — 500 share

It has been determined that Cook Iskands Investment Corporation, the Parent, has control over these entities — TMU, TTV,
and ACL and as such have been consulidated directly into these Group financial staterments.

Investment in Subsidiaries Group

Te Mana Uira o Araura Limited
To Tatou Vai Limited

Avaroa Cables Limited

Tatal Investment in Subsidiaries

Note 21 Banking customer deposits - Group

2019
o : Due Over one
Total « 0. otal within
: year
RN one year

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

call deposits U e0,081 .

g 48,586 48,586 -
Client term deposils 30935 . 3878 41307 37,348 4040
TOTAL Uii 90/eeG ) 088 89,953 85934 4,049

Included in customer deposits are deposits from Cook Islands Government, Cook Islands Government Departments and other
entilies ultimately owned by the Cook Isfands Government totalling $30,975,000 (2019: $34,328,000).
The Parent does not have banking customer deposits.
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Cock Isltands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 22 Borrowings

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Group )
30 June - 30 June
2019 2019
Current portion 809 -
Non current portion 18,694 -

Total borrowings 19,503;.: L

Ports Authority Borrowings

The Asian Developmaent Bank {ADB) approved two loans (L2472-CO0 and L2473-COQ) on 20 Novernber 2008 for the funding of the
Avatiu Port Development Project. The ADB signed the loan agresments for these two loans with the Governmeni of the Cook Islands
on & May 2009 and the Government on-lent to the Ports Authority by way of a subsidiary loan agreement signad on 31 July 2008,
ADB further approved and signed a supplementary loan {L2739-C00) 1o loans L2472-C00 and L2473-CO0 on 24 March 2011 and 30
December 2011 respectively with the Government of the Cock Islands as part of the funding of the Avatiu Port Development Project.
The Governmeni on provides the funds to Ports Authority by effect of the subsidiary loan agreemert signed on 31 July 2009.

The borrowings ware drawn down through the Cook Islands Gavernment. The Authority received concessionary interest rates for the
three loans which were the sama rates as in the subsidiary loan agreements between Government and the Authority.

ADB L2472
This loan is for a period of 20 years plus a 5 ysar grace period with repayrnents commencing on 156 May 2014. This concessiorary
loan was fully drawn by May 2013. The full draw down was USD$8,419,792.

ADBL2473

The loan is fixed for a period of 24 years plus an 8 year gracs period with squal repayments commencing on 15 May 2017. This
concessionary lean was fully drawn by February 2014, The full draw down was SDR4,519,038. The naminal interest rate for Loan
2473 is 1% per annum for the 8 year grace period and 1.5% thereafter.

The Autherity is responsible for any changss in the amounts payable arising due to exchange rate fluctuations. Accordingly, all
exchange rate risks ars camried by the Authority. The borrewings ars recorded in NZD at the exchange rate at the date of the
drawdown and are restated using the closing rate at balance date. Any changes in exchange rate fluctuations are recorded in the
Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses.

ADB L2739

Loan 2739 is supplementary to L2473 and 12472 for USD $4.7 million and is fixed for a period of 20 years plus a & year interast grace
pariod with repayments commencing on 15 May 2016. The full draw down was US$4,428,273 by May 2013 and a further NZ$32,425
was drawn on January 2014 after the loan was converted to NZD currency.

Loan 2472 and Lean 2739 was converted to NZD on 16 May 2013 with a fixed interest rate of 5.77% and an average floating interest
rate of 2.00% {2019: 2.64%) for the respective loans.

Ports Authority Borrowings
In thoussands of New Zealand Dollars

L2472 L2473 L2739

Asat 1 July 2019 8,869 5,752 4,881

Interest accrued during the year 498 95 111

Repayments -4 201) (241) 120

ADB Loan Grant #+ . (409) (266) 14

Mavement in foreign exchange . 0 215 0

o As at 30 June 2020 » 8557 5858 - 4,758
& ' "_
- e

Current Liability W 322 405 140

Non-current Liability 8,247 5,171 4,585

Puring the year and as & result of the adversa impact of the Global pandemic from COVID-19, the Government of the Cook Islands
offered a concessian in loan repayments by agresing to make principal and interest repayments on behalf of Ports Authority over the
next two years. Repayments by the Authourity will recommencs on 31 May 2022,

The loan repaymant congcession provided by the Government resulted in the recegnition of an equity injection of $789,378 with
corresponding reduction in loan liability to recognize Government repayment from its loan rasaerve funds,
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Note 22 Borrowings

Avaroa Cable Limited Borrowings

The Government of the Cook Islands has entered into a loan agreement with the Asian Development Bank for USD $18 million for the
purpase of Cook Island’s share of the Manatua Cable System including construction of the cable and additional spurs to Rarotonga
and Aitutaki, construction of landing stations and project management support. In line with the ADB loan agreement, the Cook Islands
Government has entered intc a subsidiary loan agreement with Avaroa Cable Limited (ACL) to relend these funds to complete the
project, The total loan amount drawn down at balance date is USD 7,662,508

Interest and commitment charges accrued as at balance date is USD 27,768

The terms of this [oan agreement include interest and other charges payable semi-annually on 1 April and 1 October each year at a
rate of 0.60% less a credit of 0.10%. A cormnmitment charge on the full amount of the loan less amounts withdrawn from time is
charged at 0.15% per annum. Principle repayments commence from 1 April 2023 with biannual payments of 2.5% of the loan balance
for a period of 10 years until 1 Cctober 2042,

Awvaroa Cable Limited Borrowings
In thousands of New Zealand Dol

30 June
2019

Current portion
Non current portion
Total borrowings

Avaroa Cable Limited - Loan Covenant Breaches
- Marine Protection Legisiation

During the financial year the Cock Islands Government were in breach of a loan covenant under their [ending arrangements with
the Asian Development Bank. The covenant requires that within 12 months of the effective date of lending, an enactment of an
executive order is submitted to Cook Islands' Parliament of draft legislation to ensure adequate protection of the Manatua Cable
system in Cook [slands' waters. This was outstanding at balance date. The carrying amount of the lending at balance date is
$11,905,000.
This breach of covenant in the Cook [slands Government's loan agreement with the Asia Development Bank has consequential
impacts to the subsidiary agreement with the ACL. Therefore due to this breach of covenant in the loan arrangements, the
Group has recognised the loan balance as a current liability in these Group financial statements in accordance with IPSAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements. The resulting impact has placad the Group into a Net Current Liability position at balance
date. To mitigate the impact of the Asian Development Bank acting on this breach and calling up the [ean proceeds at year end,
the Cook [slands Government have provided a waiver subsequent to balance date. This walver confirms the loan proceeds
under the subsidiary agreement will not be called upon if the Asian Development Bank called up the loan proceeds under its
lending arrangements with the Cook Islands Government, and the Cook [slands Government will provide the balance of the
undrawn pertion of the $16,000,000 USD lent under the subsidiary [oan agresment which was yet to be drawn down by ACL at
year end, in order for ACL to bring the Cook Islands' portion of the Manatua Cable Project to completion. The Group therefore
consider the preparation of financial statements on a going concern basis to be appropriate.

- Defay in reporting of Financilal Statements
Subsequent to balance date, ACL was in breach of a loan covenant under its lending arrangements held with the Asian
Development Bank. This covenant required ACL's audited financial statements to be presented to the Asian Development Bank
ne later than 6 months after the end of the reporting period. The Cook Islands Government has confirmed they will not suspend,
cancel, or call up the lending provided under the subsidiary loan agreement, or in the evant the Asian Development Bank
decided to suspend the lending provided under their lending arrangements with the Cook Islands Government due to this brelich
hy ACL.
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Note 23 Financial Instruments - financial risk management
Exposure to currency, interest rate, liquidity and credit risk arises in the normal course of the Group's operations.
This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, policies and processes for
measuring and managing risk, and the Group's management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are
included throughout these financial statements.
Fair values
Set out below are the carrying amounts by class of the Group's financial instruments

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars
Carrying amount
Parent

Financial assefs

30 June

2019
Cash and cash equivalents 1,432
Term deposits 713
Trade and other receivables 634
Banking portfolio investments -
Taxation receivable 770
Dividends receivable -
Related party receivables 185

3,714

All financial assets held by the group are classified and measure at amortised cost. Due to the nature and term of
the financial assets that the Group holds, the fair value and carrying value of financial assets is not materially
different.

in thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Carrying amount
Parent

Financial liabilities

30 June

2019
Trade and other payables 631
Employee entitlements 70
Banking customer deposits -
Income tax payable -
Related pariy payables 1,638
Bank loan -
Dividends payable -

2,239

Due to the nature and term of the financial liabilities that the group holds, the fair value and carrying value of
financial liabilities is not materially different.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 23

Financial Instruments - financial risk management (continued)

The fair value of the financial assets and Habilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced sale or liquidation. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Cash and short-term deposits, frade receivables, trade payables and other current liabilities approximate their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Long-term fixed rate and variable rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Group based on parameters
such as interest rates, specific country risk factors and individual creditworthiness of the customer and the risk
characteristics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for the incurred
losses of these receivables and market related interest rates. As at 30 June 2020 and 2019 respectively, the
carrying amounts of such receivables, net of allowances are not materially different from their calculated fair values.

The fair value of other financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cashflows using rates currently available
for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if customers or counterparties to financial instruments fail to meet
their contractual obligations. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk as af 30 June was:

Group Parent
- 30 June 30 June
2019

201

In thousands of New Zealand Dollars

Cash and cash equivalents 21,979 1,432

Term deposits 38,852 713

Trade and other receivables 7,306 634

Banking portfolic investments 81,81 -
Taxation receivable 1,224 770
Dividends receivable -
Retated party receivables 551 165

Maximum exposure to credit risk 151,803 3,714

in the normal course of business, the Group incurs credit risk from frade debtors, cash and cash equivalents and
term deposits held with other financial institutions and loans receivable from customers.

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of anticipated losses in respect of
receivables.

Credit rigk for the Group arises principally from the Bank of the Coock islands Limited's loans to customers.
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Note 23 Financial Instruments - financial risk management (continuad)
Credit risk (continued) :
Bank managemsnt monitor credit risk through credit policies and security ratio limits. All loans are reviewed annually
to ensure that loans are still operating under loan contracted conditions. However, problem loans are reviewed on a
shorter timeframs, either 3 months or 6 manths, in addition to annual reviews. Anomalies are reported 1o the Manager
Credit who will assign follow up tasks for the credit officers. Loan payment arrears are reviewed monthly to ensure
client arrears are addressed. The Bank holds monthly Credit Management Committee mestings to montior accounts,
arrears and follow ups. Loans that become a concern are followed up by the Asset Management Unit and reportad
monthly to the board of Directors. The exposure is monitored on an en-going basis and in monthy reports to
Management and the Board of Directors.

{i) Analysis of Credit Quality
Maximurn

Business Mortgage Personal Total Total
2019

In thousands of Mew Zeafand Dollars

Maximum exposure to credit risk

Gross carrying amount 87,412

Loans with renegotiated terms
Gross carrying amount 547

542

Neither past due nor impaired
Gross carrying amount 79,619

79,619

Past due but not impaired (days in arrears)
0-30

31-60

61-90

Individually impaired
Balance as at 1 July
Additions

Amounts written off
Transferred out
Balance as at 30 June
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Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 23 Financial Instruments - financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk {continued)
{i) Analysis of Credit Quality (continued)

Impaired loans

The Group regards a loan as impaired in the following circumstances.

There is objective evidence that a loss event has occurred since initial recognition and the loss event has an impact
on future estimated cash flows from the asset.

A retail loan is overdue for 90 days or more.

A loan that has been renegotiated due fo a deterioration in the borrower's condition is usually considersd to be
impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and
there are no other indicators of impairment.

Provision is made for specific loans where recovery is considered doubtful or they have become non-performing.
Provision is made in accordance with IPSAS 41 as described in Note 1(g).

Loans that are past due but not impaired

Loans and advances that are past due but not impaired are those for which contractual interest or principal
payments are past due but the bank believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the level of security
or collateral available and / or the stage of collation of amounts owed to the bank.

Loans with renegotiated terms and the Bank’s forbearance policy

Renegotiated loans are impaired assets for which the terms have been changed to grant the counterparty a
concession that would not otherwise have been available due to the counterparty’s difficulty in complying with the
original terms and where the yield on the asset following restructuring is still above the bank's cost of funds.

The bank renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulties (referred to as "forbearance activities') to maximise
collection opportunities and miniminse the risk of default. Under the bank's forbearance policy, loan forbearance is
granted on a selective basis if the debtor is currently in default on its debt or if there is a high risk of default, there is
evidence that the debtor made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms and the debtor is
expecied to be able to meet the revised terms.

The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of interest payments and amending
the terms of loan covenants. Both retail and corporate loans are subject to the forbearance policy. The bank's
Compliance Committee regutarly reviews reports of forbearance activities.

For the purposes of disclosures in these financial statements, 'loans with renegoatiated tetms’ are defined as loans
that have been restructured due to a deterioration in the borrower's financial position for which the bank has made
concessions by agreeing to terms and conditions that are more favourable for the borrower than the bank and
provided initially and that it would not otherwise consider. A loan continues to be presented as part of loans with
renegotiated terms until maturity, ealier repayment or until it is written off.

Irrespective of whether loans with renegotiated terms have been derecognised or not, they remain disclosed as
impaired and appropriately provisioned until there is sufficient evidence to demonstrate a significant reduction in the
risk of non-payment of future cash flows and there are no other indicators of impairment.

Security
Security is required in respect of most lending. There are various securities which the bank holds. These include but
are not limited to mortgages over leases, personal and company guarantees and Instruments by Way of Security.
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

Note 23  Financial Instruments - financial risk management {(continued)
Credit risk (confinued)
(i} . Impairment Allowance

30 Juns 218

Spactic

Provialon  Provisian  Provisien  Pravislen Tatal
Stagel Stape 2 Staga 3 Staga3

Bualness
Balanca at baginning of Parlod -1 July

267 - 242 3,452 2001
Ghangss o opening balance due fa transfer between stage: - - - M -
Callective Pravision - New 27 - - - s
Coliscilive Provielon - Stage 1 (67} 62 a3 - &8
Oallzctiva Pravision - Stags 2 (14} - - . {14y
Gollective Provision ~Stag3 - - (54 {1185 (163)
Speciic Individusl Pravsion - Biaged - - 22 k4 54
Charge to etatement of comprehensive Incoma In cumant year. {36) - (5] 816 275
Bad Debls writercff - - - (452) (45
Balanca as al 30 June 117 52 287 3233 X1

~EpncHic
Pravislen  Provislon  Frovision  Proviston Total
Stagel Staga 2 Staged Stage d
Mortgage

‘Balance at beginning of Perlot -1 July

123 2 139 257 L7
Changes to opening bafancs due to transfer between stages: - . M - -
Golaclive Prnviglon - New B % . - - a5
Collactive Pravislon - Staga 1 L3 12 104 ™ 207
Cellactive Provielon - Btaga 2 {1} - - - 4]
Coflective Provielon. - Slaged a - @ @ @
Specic Individual Provision - Staged ) - 1 182 163
Charge o statement of comprehenclve income in comentyear.;: (5] - {20) {46} [e4)]
Bad Debiswriten-off i - - - 16 5]
Balares ax at 50 Jins 4 224 420 804

Spaciie

Frovislon  Provislon  Provision  Tafal
Stagal Staga 2 Stzge 3 Staga &

Persoual
Balnes at baginnlg of Parlod -4 Suly 62 - il - 123
Changes to opening balapce due ta transfer betwaen stages: - - - - -
Collostiva Fravision - New 13 - 1 - 14
Coliartiva Fmvision - Stage 1 @ - a6 - 2
Collectiva Poovision - Slage 2 - - - - -
Collocties Provislon - Stage3 o - @ - ol
Spedific Indvidual Provision - Staga? . - - - -
Charge to stalement of comprehensive Incame In eument yaar: &) - (3} 12 4
Bad Delis vaiteh-off i G - (20) (12) i)
Batance as at 30 June. ETd - [F] - 49
Spociic

Gollsctiva  Callactive  Collective  Individual

‘Provisian  Frovislon  Pravision Provision  Totl

;. Stagel Siage 2 Staps 3 iage
Total
Balance at baglnning of Pariad - 1 July
Changes to opening balance due ta transfer batween siages:
Colleclive: Provision - Nerw

Collective Provision - Stage 1

Colisctive Provision - Stage 2

Collsctive Provision - Stage3

Spectfic ndividust Provislon - Stage3
Charge o slatement of Income
Bad Debls writercff

Balance as 2t 30 June
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 23 Financial Instruments - financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued}
(iif} Significant concentrations of credit risk
Concentrations of credit risk exist if a number of counterparties are engaged in similar activities and have similar economic
characteristics that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic
or other conditions.

The Group menitors concentrations of credit risk by location, institution and sector,

Parent
30 June
2019
in thousands of New Zealand Dollars
Concentration by Location
New Zealand financial institutions -
New Zealand other institutions -
Australia financial instijutions -
Rarotonga financial insfitutions 2,145
Rarotonga - lending 73,593 . -
Quter islands - lending 8,298 : -
Rarotonga - Related parties 851 165
Other 8,530 1,404
151,803 : 3,714
Concentration by Counterparty
Credit ratin, :
Australia New Zealand Bank AA- 23,220 | <]
Bank of South Pacific B+ 25151 ° 1,398
Kiwi Bank A 10,702 -
Wastpac Banking Corporation AA- 91 -
Coop Money NZ B+ 1,639 -
National Australia Bank Group AA- 28’ -
Bank of the Cook Islands N/A - 741
Loans 1o customers N/A 81,801 ! -
Related parties N/A 551 - 165
Cther N/A 8,530 ¢ 1,404
Total 151,803 3,714
Concentration by Sector ]
Banks 59,192 - 2,145
Other institutions 1,639 -
Housing 41,613 -
Persaonal 10,098 -
Business 30,280 -
Related parties 551 165
Other 8,530 - 1,404
Total 151,803 3,714
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Note 23

Financial Instruments - financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations as and when they fall
due. The Group evaluates its liguidity requirements on an on-going basis. In general, the Group generates sufficient
cash flows from operating activities fo meet its obligations arising from its financial liabilities.

Within the Group, liguidity risk is most prevalent in the banking operations.

The Bank of the Cook Iskands Board sets the Bank's strategy for managing liquidity risk and has delegated
responsibility for oversight of the liquidity policy to the Assets and Liabilities Committee.

The Finance and Customer Service & Marketing departments review the liquidity position on a daily basis and report
any exceptions and liquidity issues to the Managing Director.

The Bank’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities as
they fall due under both normal and stressed conditions without unacceptable losses or damage to the Bank's
reputation. The key elements of the Barik's strategy are as follows:

daily monitoring of cash levels held for client withdrawals,

daily monitoring of cash held in other financia! institutions on calk and on term deposit,

weekly liguidity reporting to management taking into consideration incoming and outgoing cash flows and estimates
commitments for the week, .

monthly discussions in the Assets and Liabililes Committee meeting and at Board level.

The maturity of individual financial assets and liabilities are detailed In the notes throughout these financial
statements.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points (bp) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased {decreased) the profit or
Ioss by amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other varizbles remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2019.

Group GROUP PARENT
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars . 30 June
2019
Interest bearing Financial assefs 2,145
Interest bearing Financial liabilities -
Net exposure 2,145
100bp increase effect on profit 21)
100bp decrease effact on profit 21

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to movements in exchange
rates. The Group does not hold any material foreign currency assets or liabilifies and therefore there is minimal
currency risk.
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Note 23 Financial Instruments - financial risk management (continuad)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

The following financial instruments are sensitive to changes in interest rates: loans, term deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, and customer deposits. Loans to customers and Customer deposits are at floating interest rates which are
reviewed on a quarterly basis to ensure they are kept in line with market interest rate movemenis. An immaterial portion of
loans have a fixed interest rate for the term of the loan. The cash on hand and short term cash deposits earn interest at
normai floating commercial rates.
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Note 23 Financial Instruments - financial risk management {continued)

Interest Rate Repricing Scheduls (continyed)

Group
In thousands of New Zealand Doflars
Weighted average  Carrying Dto 12 1-5 »5 Non

interest rate Amount months years years sensitive
Balance as at 30 June 2019
Financial Assets
GCash on hand NIA 2,321 - - - 2,321
Cash af bank 0.62% 20,941 20,941 - - -
Term Deposits 2.96% 38,852 29,186 9,668 - -
Trade and other sundry receivab NIA 7,306 - - - 7,306
Related party receivables WA 551 E - - 551
Taxation receivable N/A 1,365 - - - 1,305
Banking portfolio investments 9.53% 81,881 81,81 - - -
Total Financial Assets 153,167 132,018 9,666 - 11,483
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables NiA 6,896 - - - 6,896
Employee entitlements N/A 892 - - - 892
Banking customer deposits 4.20% 89,883 85,934 4,049 - -
Income tax payable NiA 66 - - - 68
Related party payables NIA 758 - - - 758
Bank loan 3.64% 19,503 -234 - 19,737 -
Dividends payable NIA - - - - -
Total Financial Liabilities 118,028 85,700 4,049 19,737 8,612
Interest Rate Gap 35,069 46,318 5617 (19,737} 2,871
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Note 23 Financial Instruments - financial risk management (continued)

Interast Rate Repricing Schedule (continued)

Parent
in thousands of New Zealand Dollars
Weighted average  Carrying 01012 1-5 >5 Nen
interest rate Amount months years years sensitive
Balance as at 30 June 2013
Financlal Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1.25% 1432 1,432 - - -
Term Deposits 4.15% 713 713 - - -
Trade and other sundry reczivab NIA 634 - - - 634
Taxation receivable NIA 770 - - - 770
Dividends receivable NIA - - - - -
Related party regeivables NIA 165 - - - 165
Total Financial Assets 3,714 2145 - - 1,569
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables NIA 631 - - - 631
Employee entitiements N/A 70 - - - 70
Related party payables NiA 1,638 - - - 1,538
Dividends payable NIA - - - - -
Total Financial Liabilities 2,239 - - - 2,239
Interest Rate Gap 1475 2,145 - - (670}

Capital management

The primary objective of managing the Group’s capital is to ensure that there is sufficient cash available to support the
Group's funding requirements, including capital expenditure, to ensure that the Group remains financially sound. The
Group’s capital includes Capital Contributions and Reserves. Within the Group, Bank of the Cook Islands Limited must meet
capital adeguacy requirements required by Cook islands Banking regulations.

Bank of the Coolk Islands Limited's policy is to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain the future
development of the banking business.

The Bank’s regutatory capital comprises two tiers:

= Tier One Capilal which includes issued and fuily paid shares and retained earnings less intangible assets. This must
be at least 5% of Risk Weighted Assets.

= Total Capital which includes all other capital must be at least 10% of Risk weighted assets.

At balance date the bank had the following:

30 June
2019

% of Risk Weighted Assets

0% 19.75%
18.02%  19.75%

Tier One Capital
Total Capital

The Bank complied with all externally imposed capital requirements.
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Note 24

Commitments and contingencies

Capital Commitments
The Group has the following capital commitments:

Avaroa Cables Limited
Avaroa Cables Limited has the following capital commitments at balance date:

Subcom, per the Supply Contract for the the design, manufacture, installation, integration, testing and commissioning of the
Manutua Cable System. At 30 June 2020, Avaroa Cable Limited's remaining share of the commitment to Subcom under this
contract is USD $5,414,596

Axiom, per the Consultancy Contract for submarine cable technical implementation manager services. At 30 June 2020,
Avaroa Cable Limited's remaining share of the commitment to Axion under this contract is estimated at NZD $33,180.

The Data Exchange Network Limited, per the Supply Contract for the design, manufacture, installation, integration, testing
and commissioning of the Cable Landing Stations. At 30 June 2020, Avaroa Cable Limited's commitment to the Data
Exchange Network Limited under this contract is NZD $279,339.

Avaroa Cable Limited entered into a contract with Telecom Cook Islands Limited on 13 August 2019 to complete trench
excavation, duct/ conduit installation, manhole creation and reinstatement, including road reinstatement, in Rarotonga and
Aitutaki. The contract sum is NZD $903,188.15. At 30 June 2020, Avaroa Cable Limited's remaining share of the commitment
to Telecom Cook Island Ltd under this contract is NZD9,364.

Operating lease rentals
The Group as lessee
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases:

Group Parent
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 30 June 30 June 30June 30 June
2020 2019 2020 2019
Land and Buildings
Due within one year 218 252 - -
Due within two to five years 1,029 994 - -
Later than five years _2,994 3,049 - -
Total operating lease expense
commitments 240 4,205 E -

Bank of the Cook Islands Limited

The Bank leases land on which BCI House stands under an operating lease. The original deed of lease runs for 60 years from
1 April 1967.
The Bank also leases the Aitutaki branch premises, the lease runs for 15 years from 1 January 2019.

Airport Authority
The Authority leases land that is utilised for Airport operations, accommodating office premises and other tenanted buldings.

Te Aponga Uira

The Authority leases land that is utilised for electricty services, accommodating office premises, solar farms and various sites
for transformer shelters.

Cook Islands Government Property Corparation

The Corporation holds long term land leases. Most of these leases are for 20 - 60 year terms and are perpetually renewable.
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Note 24 Commitments and contingencies (continued)
Operating lease rentals (continued)

The Group as lessor
Future minimum lease income under non-cancellable operating leases:

Group Parent
In thousands of New Zealand Dollars 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2020 2019 2020 2019
Buildings
Due within one year 69 93 - -
Due within one to two years 3 2 - -
Due within two to five years = - = -
Total 72 a5 - -

The Group lets properties under operating leases. Property rental income earned on operating leases during the year was
$700,000 (2019: $762,000).

Other Commitments
The Group through Bank of the Cook Islands has committed to lending a number of loans in the future that have not yet been drawn
down. As at 30 June 2020 these undrawn loans total $3,784,000 (2019: $5,026,000).

Contingencies
The Group is currently aware of the contingent liabilities listed below. Various other contingent liabilities may exist having arisen over
the earlier period of the Corporation's existence of which the Members of the Corporation are not aware.

Uncalled Capital

Asian Development Bank — the Corporation has a further 88 uncalled shares. The shares have a par value of USD13,500 each.

Grant Funding

The New Zealand Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade (NZ MFAT) has provided funding to the Government of the Cook Islands
(CIG) under the Grant Funding Agreement (GFA) dated 6 April 2018 to implement the Pacific Connectivity Project — the construction
of the Manatua Submarine Cable. Grant funding of $10.1 million was provided for under the GFA dated 6 April 2018. The funding
activity is in relation to the Cook Islands participation in the Manatua Cable consortium, and the Cook Islands contribution to the
consortium for Cook Islands contribution towards the Manatua Cable as a consortium member. A variation to the GFA was entered
into between both parties on 23 November 2018, increasing the grant funding from $10.1 million to $15.0 million. The grant funding is
disbursed from NZ MFAT to the Ministry of Finance and Economic Management (MFEM) Development Coordination Division (DCD)
and this is then either disbursed to the respective agency incurring the requisite costs or directly to suppliers.

At balance date, the funds received from NZ MFAT and its disbursements is disclosed in the following table.

Total 30 June 30 June 30 June
2018 - 2020 2020 2019 2018
Opening balance - 8,907 2,710 -
Funds received by DCD from NZ MFAT under the GFA 15,000 2,000 10,200 2,800
Funds disbursed from DCD to ACL for operating and capital costs (10,758) (6,830)  (3,928) -
Funds disbursed from DCD to other CIG agencies for costs incurred (188) (23) (75) (90)
Bal f the GFA
alance of funds received by DCD from NZ MFAT under the G 4,054 4054 8,907 2710
There were no further contingent assets or liabilities as at balance date.
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Note

Note

25 Segmental Reporting
The Group operates primarily in the property investment and management sectors. 1t also operates in the utilities sector, consisting
of poris and airport services, power supply and banking.

Industry Segments
In thousands of New Zealand Doflars

'('féDS?). ! :': . ;

Balance as at 30 June 2019

Trading Revenue 8,501 - 918 24,010 10,052 3,758 47,240
Crown Appropriation - 44 5,743 - 2,048 - 7,835
Other Revenue - 4,469 2,072 746 110 143 7,540
Expenses (6,502) (413) {11,802} (20,249) (10,369)  (3,363) (52,798)
Other Gains / (Losses) - 5,071 - (512) 10 (18) 4,551
Surplus / {Deficit) before tax 1,999 8171 {3,068) 3,395 1,851 520 14,368
Total Assets 111,164 15,652 66,943 66,708 74,738 35,145 370,350
Total Liabilities 84,809 4,579 4,611 3,302 2,571 20,075 119,948
Capitaf Expenditure 716 4,058 12,259 1,170 1,413 335 19,951

26 Going Concern

These financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis. The Corporation is uliimately dependent on the support
of the Government by Crown Appropriation. In addition, the liquidity of the Corporation is inherently dependent on the proceeds from
the management and disposal of its assets, the value and potential retums of which are uncertain. Despite this, there are no known
matters fthal suggest the support of the Govemment will be withdrawn or that the proceeds from the asset management and disposal
will be insufficient to meet the requirements of the Corporation for the foresesable future. The Cook Islands Government has
provided a letter of suppart stating that it will maintain ownership and control of the group for the foreseeable future and will provide
financial assisstance where necessary for the group to continue ifs operations.
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Cook Islands Investment Corporation
Annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 27 Subsequent Events

The Covid-19 outbreak, which has become a global pandemic during the year continues to present strategic, operational and
commersial uncertainties for the Group. The situation continues 1o change rapidly and uncertainties remain around the
duration, scele and impact of the Coronavirus/Covid-19 outbreak. The Group continues to take various measures to mitigate
the impact of Coronavirus/Covid-19 on its operations including employees and customers. The key impacts on Group entities
are described in Note 3 and throuhout the notes to the financial statements where applicable.

On 3 December 2020 the Banana Court Company Limited renewed its premises ground lease for a further 30 years from 1st
September 2020 with annuzal lease payments of 12.5% of tenani rental revenues.

Subsaquent to year end, Te Tatou Vai Limitad entered into a lease with Airport Authority for 2 years from 12th October 2020
for $18,200 per annum plus VAT.

In August 2020 Avaroca Cable Limited sntered into a 36 month contract with Telecom Cook Islands Ltd, to provide both,
internet connectivity up to the Rarotonga Cable Landing Station (CLS), Lit Fibre and activated capacity for the exclusive use
of the customer from the Rarotonga CLS to Ajtutaki CLS.

Avaroa Cable Limited is currently in negotiations with another Consortium member regarding its prospective contractual
arrangements with a service provider for westward bound IP transit through to Samoa. This matter has been refsrred to
arbitration. The potential legal fees for arbitration if it were to run to completion have been estimated to be up to $400,000.
The autcome, timing and expacted settlement amounts if any, are unknown at the time of signing these finangial
statements.

On 1 October 2020, Te Aponga Uira’s second phase of discounts (commencing 19th June for a pariod of three months) was
arnounced to continue until the end of December 2020. Since then, further extensions of the discounts have bsen
announced. As at 8 June 21, the discounts offerred includs $30 per month for domestic household cennections and 30%
discount for commercial customers who are currantly registered with MFEM as being eligible 1o recsive support.

On 1 October 2020, Te Apanga Uira board of directors declared a special dividend of $425,000 to be paid 1o the sharsholders
{Crown} via Cook Islends Investment Corporation. This amount was paid on the 6th October 2020.

Subsequent to year end, Te Mzna Uira 0 Araura Limited announced the continuation of the third phase of Covid discounts to
December 2020. From April 21 to June 21, the discounts offerred include $25 par month for domestic household
connections and 80% discount for cemmercial custormers whe are currently registerad with MFEM as being eligibie to
receive support,

There have been other subsequent events.
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Cook Islands investment Corporaticn
Annua! report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Note 27

Subslequent Evenis

The Covid-19 outbreak, which has become a global pandemic during the year continues to present sirategic, operational and
commercial uncertaintias for the Group. The siuation continues to change rapidly and uncertainties rerain around the
duration, scale and impact of the Coronavirus/Covid-19 outbreak. The Group continves 1o take various measures to mitigate
the impact of Coronavirus/Covid-19 on its operations including employees and customers. The key impacts on Group entities
are dascribed in Note 3 and throuhout the notes to the financial staternents whers applicable.

On 3 December 2020 the Banana Court Company Limited renewed its premises ground lease for a further 30 years from st
Septernber 2020 with annual lease payments of 12.5% of tenant rental revenues.

Subsequent to year end, To Tatou Vai Limited entered into a lease with Airport Authority for 2 years from 12th Getober 2020
for $18,20C per annum plus VAT.

In August 2020 Avaroa Cable Limited enterad into a 36 month contract with Telecom Cook lslands Ltd, to provide both,
internet connectivity up to the Rarotonga Cable Landing Station (CLS), Lit Fibre and activated capacity for the exclusive use
of the customer from the Rarotonga CLS to Aitutaki CLS,

Avaros Cable Limited is currently in negetiations with another Consortium mamber regarding its prospective contractual
afrangements with a service provider for westward bound IP transit through to Samoa. This matter has been referred to
arbitration. The potential legal fees for arbitration i it wers to run to cempletion have bean estimated to be up to $400,000.
The cutcome, timing and expected sattlament amounts if any, are unknown at the time of signing these financial
staternents.

On 1 October 2020, Te Aponga Uira's second phase of discounts {commencing 19th June for a period of three months) was
announced to continue until the end of December 2020. Since then, further extensions of the discounts have been
announced. As at 8 June 21, the discounts offerred includs $30 per month for domestic hausehold connections and 30%
discount for commercial customers who are currently registerad with MFEM as being eligible to receive support,

On 1 October 2020, Te Aponga Uira board of directors declared s special dividend of $425,000 to be paid to the sharehclders
{Crown) via Cook Islands Investment Corporation. This amount was paid on the 6th Ocicber 2020.

Subseguent to year end, Te Mana Uira o Araura Limited announced the continuation of the third phase of Covid discounts to
December 2020. From April 21 to June 21, the discounts offerred include $25 per month for domestic household
connactions and 80% discount for commercial customers who are currently registered with MFEM as being eligible to
receive support.

There have been no other subsequent events.
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